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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present our annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as
plastic cloth and shaft. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group’s revenue increased to approximately RMB354 million,
representing an increase of approximately 15.7% in comparison to
that of 2021. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded a loss for the year of approximately RMB29 million, as
compared with loss of approximately RMB128 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The revenue of the Group’s POE umbrellas products increased by
approximately RMB22 million, or 36.1%, from approximately RMB61
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMBB83 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The revenue of the Group’s nylon umbrellas products decreased
by approximately RMB49 million, or 40.2%, from approximately
RMB122 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB73 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The revenue of the Group’s umbrella parts products increased
by approximately RMB75 million, or 61.0%, from approximately
RMB123 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB198 million for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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Our principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen our position
as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan market and
on our own branded umbrella products in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) market, and increase our market share in existing
markets such as Hong Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all the
colleagues for their diligence, dedication, loyalty and integrity. | would
also like to thank all the shareholders, customers, bankers and other
business associates for their trust and support.

Huang Weniji
Chairman

Fujian Province, the PRC, 31 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFNWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as plastic
cloth and shaft. The Group manufactures products at the production
site located in Dongshi Town and Yonghe Town of Jinjiang City in
Fujian Province of the PRC.

The Group principally engaged in selling POE umbrellas, nylon
umbrellas and umbrella parts on export basis to the Group’s
overseas customers which accounted for approximately 77% of the
Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
Group exported its POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella
parts to markets such as Japan, Hong Kong, Republic of Korea,
Taiwan, Spain and Cambodia. The Group’s overseas customers
would usually provide the Group with their design and specification.
The Group’s sales personnel would closely communicate with the
Group’s customers. Depending on the specific needs of these
overseas customers, the Group’s sales personnel would put forward
the Group’s suggestions for modifications to design and specification
from its research and development staff to the Group’s customers
for their consideration. When customers decide on the final design
and specification, the Group would make samples and provide to
the Group’s customers for approval.

For domestic market, the Group sold its POE umbrellas, nylon
umbrellas and umbrella parts to the Group’s customers in the PRC
which accounted for approximately 23% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group’s domestic
customers would usually place orders with the Group from selection
of its existing POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas products which
are all designed by its research and development team. The Group
also sell some of its POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas under the
Group’s Jicheng (£ /%) brand through sales to our non-trading
customers such as supermarkets.

The Group also manufactured umbrella parts as an ancillary products
mainly for the Group’s existing customers, both overseas and
domestic customers, some of which also purchased POE umbrellas
and nylon umbrellas from the Group.

The Group’s new business strategy is to shift business focus from
developing upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution
network and brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the
Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher margins.

To diversify its business and explore potential business opportunities,
the Group is exploring and developing business opportunities and
projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The revenue increased from approximately RMB306 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB354 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, representing an increase of
approximately 15.7%, which was mainly attributable to the increased
demand for the POE umbrellas and umbrella parts.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales increased from approximately RMB279 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB319 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, representing an increase of
approximately 14.3%. The increase was mainly attributable to the
corresponding increase in direct materials costs and direct labour
costs were in line with the Group’s increase in revenue during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, the gross profit increased by
approximately RMB8 million, or 29.6%, from approximately RMB27
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB35 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The gross
profit margin increased from approximately 8.8% for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately 9.9% for the year ended 31
December 2022.

OTHER INCOME AND NET GAIN/(LOSS)

The Group recorded other income and net gain of approximately
RMB19 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 as compared
with other income and net loss of approximately RMB12 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. It was mainly due to the
exchange gain of approximately RMB11 million during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately RMB9
million or 29.0% from approximately RMB31 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB22 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmED T

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately RMB36 million,
or 45%, from approximately RMB80 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB44 million for the year ended
31 December 2022. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly due to the decrease in research and development expenses
of approximately RMB25 million during the year ended 31 December
2022,

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs remained stable as approximately RMB4 million for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a loss
for the year of approximately RMB29 million, as compared with loss
of approximately RMB128 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The material improvement in the financial performance of
the Group were mainly due to (i) the increase in revenue due to
the recovery of the pandemic; and (iij the decrease in selling and
distribution expenses and administrative expenses during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank balances and cash
(including fixed time deposits of approximately RMB24 million (2021:
approximately RMB59 million)) amounted to approximately RMB41
million (2021: approximately RMB61 million), and short-term bank
borrowings amounted to RMB68 million (2021: approximately
RMB78 million). The annual interest rates of loans ranged from
3.40% to 4.55%. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s contingent
consideration balance was transferred to other payable as the
guarantee period are matured.

The Group’s current ratio increased from 2.6 times as at 31
December 2021 to 2.9 times as at 31 December 2022, which
was calculated based on the total current assets divided by the
total current liabilities. As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio
was approximately 31% (2021: approximately 32%), which was
calculated based on the bank borrowings and bills payables to the
percentage of the total equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2022, the inventories were approximately
RMB132 million (2021: approximately RMB128 million). The inventory
turnover days were decreased from approximately 254 days in 2021
to approximately 149 days in 2022, which was calculated based on
the average of the beginning and ending balance of inventories for
the year divided by cost of sales for the year, and multiplied by 365
days.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2022, the trade receivables were approximately
RMB149 million (2021: approximately RMB119 million). The
Group generally allows an average credit period of 90 days to its
trade customers. The average trade receivables turnover day was
increased from approximately 100 days in 2021 to approximately
138 days in 2022, which was calculated based on the average of
the beginning and ending trade receivable balances for the year
divided by revenue for the year and multiplied by 365 days.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2022, the trade and bills payables were
approximately RMB59 million (2021: approximately RMB25 million).
The Group’s suppliers typically grant us a credit terms ranging
from 30 days to 120 days. The average trade and bills payables
turnover days were slightly decreased from approximately 52 days
in 2021 to approximately 49 days in 2022, which was calculated
based on the average of the beginning and ending of trade and bills
payable balance of the year divided by cost of sales of the year and
multiplied by 365 days.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The business of the Group is subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties. The following is a summary of some of the principal
risks and uncertainties affecting the Group’s business:

- The Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operations may be affected by the loss of key customers.

It is important for the Group to maintain close and mutually
beneficial relationships with the Group’s key overseas and
domestic customers. The Group’s revenue is also subject
to the Group’s customers’ business, product quality, sales
strategy, industry conditions and the overall economic market
environments. Any significant reduction of sales to or loss
of any of the Group’s key customers could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmED T

- The Group may be subject to certain risks, such as political
and economic instability and fluctuations in currency rates
of foreign currencies, associated with selling our umbrella
products to Japan, the PRC and other overseas customers.

- Any change in market demand levels for the Group’s umbrella
products in Japan, the PRC and in the Group’s other export
destinations may have a significant effect on the Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations. In
particular, the Group is affected by changes in the economic
condition of Japan, a major destination of our products, and
the PRC.

- As the Group’s sales are primarily made in US dollar, RMB
and Japanese Yen whereas the Group’s purchases of
materials and payment of wages and salaries to the PRC
workers are in RMB and US dollar, therefore, the Group is
exposed to exchange rate risk. In addition, the Group is
exposed to the risks associated with the currency conversion
and exchange rate system in the PRC.

- Fluctuations in prices of raw materials or unstable supply of
raw materials could negatively impact our operations and
may adversely affect our profitability.

The prices of most of the Group’s raw materials generally
follow the price trends of, and vary with, market conditions.
Supplies of these raw materials may also be subject to
a variety of factors that are beyond our control, including
but not limited to market shortages, suppliers’ business
interruptions, government control, weather conditions and
overall economic conditions, all of which may have an impact
on their respective market prices from time to time.

- The Group may experience a shortage of labour or our labour
costs may continue to increase.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material capital
commitment (2021: nil). As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities (2021: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB10 million (2021:
approximately RMB12 million) and the fixed time deposits with
a carrying amounts of approximately RMB24.2 million (2021:
approximately RMB58.7 million) were pledged to banks for bank
borrowings and bills payables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 571
employees (2021: 800 employees). The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group was set up by the Board based on their
experience, qualifications and competence. Other employees’
benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
funds, and social insurance together with housing provident funds to
its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND CAPITAL ASSETS

On 17 June 2022, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company - Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong Company Limited and
an independent third party entered into the sales and purchases
agreement, to sell, 100% equity interest in an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary — Jinjiang Jicheng Light Industry Co., Ltd., which were
engaged in manufacturing and sales of umbrella parts in PRC, at a
consideration of RMB30,000,000. The disposal of a subsidiary was
completed on 24 June 2022.

Except for the above, the Group had no significant investments,
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and capital assets
during the year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on the Listing Date with net proceeds received by
the Company from the global offering in the amount of approximately
HK$134.2 million (equivalent to approximately RMB106.0 million)
after deducting underwriting commissions and all related expenses.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company published on 30
December 2016, the Board has resolved to reallocate the unutilised
amount of approximately RMB61.4 million to the following two areas:

1) approximately RMB36.9 million out of the unutilised net
proceeds for buying new brand-names and/or licensing
rights of umbrella products from Southeast Asian countries
to increase its market shares in those countries as well as
investing in a trading company comprising umbrella and other
products.

2) to increase the allocation for approximately RMB24.5 million
for brand awareness promotions and advertising expenses
both in domestic and overseas markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB B AT

The Board is of the view that such re-allocation of unutiised net ZEEER A ZEFHE EABHANERAE
proceeds is in line with the Group’s new business strategy to FHENANEBMBESFELBERE FHEE
shift business focus from developing upstream manufacturing to B = T 2 #5048 K G R 22 5% DA (R 3 1
downstream distribution network and brand building to facilitate — FERE H 2 ANEE DIEFE 7 FEFHER -
promotion of the Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher

margins.

As at 31 December 2022, the net proceeds had been utiised as WZZE--F+ = ﬂ +—8 FEHIEF
follows: BERENTRE

Utilised
Unutilised amount for Unutilised
amount as at the year ended amount as at
Revised 31 December 31 December 31 December
Use of net proceeds FERERERE allocation 2021 2022 2022

Hz-B_C
+ZA=+-H BE=-E==Z
_|_

HE-2C--F
+ZA=t-H &g +=A=t-H
BETIE RBEEHE EBALE REBAEHE
RMB (million) RMB (million) RMB (million) RMB (million)
AR¥EEET AR¥EERT AR¥EERT AR¥EER

Increasing our production capacity by BRREIMNRSARE

constructing a factory E# 245 - - -
Paying the outstanding of the consideration i ABEZ R THK10E

in relation to the construction and BHMMAETIREL

completion of the new 10-storey RZAHE

office building 3.1 - - -
Strengthen our technical expertise BRAEE BERROH

and know-how to ensure continuous NERBENEAEEIER

improvement of our products 3.7 - - -
Additional working capital and ENEEEe REM—RAF

other general corporate purposes fiikes 10.6 - - -
Further expansion of our branded umbrellas #1138 % $57Z B A R EI R [

by intensifying our marketing activities MTEREAEERE

to promote our brand awareness both NEEmE—FHEEAS

in the domestic and overseas miERE 27.2 - - -
Buying new brand-names and investing BENmEEERIRE—fH

in a trading company EUYVNS 36.9 21.7 21.7 -
Total it 106.0 21.7 217 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUYING NEW BRAND-NAMES AND INVESTING IN A TRADING
COMPANY

On 23 May 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in E/IHmEE 5 AR A A (“Jingting”)
from an independent third party, which was satisfied by way of
RMB5,000,000 in cash and issuance of promissory note with
principal amount of RMB24,000,000 including the maturity term of
36 months.

Accordingly, the remaining net proceeds of approximately RMB21.7
million for buying new brand-names and investing in a trading
company are fully utilised for the same specific use.

PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

Completion on the placing took place on 1 June 2022 and the net
proceeds of the placing were approximately HK$22.44 million. As at
31 December 2022, HK$22.44 million were fully utilized as intended
for repayment of certain bank loans.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen
its position as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan
market and its own branded umbrella products in the PRC market,
and increase its market share in the existing markets such as Hong
Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

BEEEFNWED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREREBRE

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. The Board comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The Company has
adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date with the following deviations:

Under paragraph A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should
be separated and should not be performed by the same person.
Mr. Huang is currently the Chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer who is primarily responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The Directors consider that
vesting the roles of the Chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer in the same person facilitates the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and decision making, and maximises the
effectiveness of the Group’s operation. The Directors also believe
that the presence of three independent non-executive Directors
provides added independence to our Board. The Directors will
review the structure from time to time and consider an adjustment
should it become appropriate.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
Directors should attend general meeting of the Company. Mr. Tso
Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, being the
independent non-executive Directors, did not attend the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 30 June 2022 due to their other
business engagements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS

The Directors have adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries
have been made to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
Board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tso Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit
Ying, Winnie.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst Directors. Their biographical details and (where
applicable) their family relationships are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
56 to 57 in the annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their
role and functions and whether they are independent non-executive
Directors are available on the Company’s website.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments, investment
policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for implementing its business
strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of senior
management. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board also reviews the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fulfill their duties. Independent
professional advice can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request.
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All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisation. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.

Newly appointed Director will be arranged a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction which includes provision of key guidelines,
documents and publications relevant to their roles, responsibilities
and ongoing obligations; a briefing on the Company’s structure,
businesses, risk management and other governance practices
and meeting with other fellow Directors so as to help the newly
appointed Directors familiarize with the management, business and
governance policies and practices of the Company, and ensure that
they have a proper understanding of the operations and businesses
of the Company.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

General
Meeting

ETN- E=

(number of meetings attended/number of mestings held during respective director’s tenure)
(REZARBELESR RN/ BTEERE)

meetings

PREFENEREZERAEFTETHRW
EFRBEREMARKBBREIZESHEM
B ARANERREFERNEERERN-

MEEINEZRESES EFNEEALR
ARSI BRERTEEAE BENKE
BEABOEERS XN URERH
ARBIRBE XK EREEMEMGERER
M-I EENEL AR MEEEH
ApBEABZARARNER EHURER
BRERER BRRSHARARNEERE
BREENERE-

ESHEERER

HE-_T-_—"F#+-A=+—BIFE &
ERBARRBREARE EFgTH BRZ
BEg YHZEekRERZESERBAHE
FanT

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board committee committee committee
meetings

ERZREE

meetings

FHERS

meetings

REZEE

g3 L g8 L

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Huang Wenji BENRELE 0/1
Mr. Yang Guang BrEE 0/1
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang WEEEE 0/1
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth BRIERE 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES

Mr. Tso Sze Wai ERERE 0/1
Mr. Yang Xuetai BEAEE 0/1
Ms. Leg Kit Ying, Winnie FREELT 0/1

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect
of potential legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors also
understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating in any suitable training or relevant
materials reading in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has received from each Director a confirmation
of their participation in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials on the topics
related to corporate governance and regulations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests of
the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board
and its committees to provide their independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One
of the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Each Board Committee has its defined and written terms of
reference approved by the Board covering its duties, powers and
functions. Their terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.
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All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

U]

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board by providing an independent view on the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group, overseeing the
audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tso Sze Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lee
Kit Ying, Winnie and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit
Committee held two meetings to review the annual and
interim results of the Group and make recommendations to
the Board and the management in respect of the Group’s
financial reporting and internal control procedures. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed, with the management and the Company’s auditor,
the Group’s significant internal controls and financial matters
in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written terms of
reference and made relevant recommendations to the Board.
The Audit Committee’s review covered the audit scope and
findings, external auditor’s independence and performance,
the Group’s accounting principles and practices, the Listing
Rules and statutory compliance, connected transactions,
internal controls, risk management, financial reporting matters
(including the interim and annual financial reports for the
Board’s approval) and the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function as well as their training programmes
and budget. It also reviewed this Corporate Governance
Report and an internal control review report on the Company
prepared by an independent advisor.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, reviewing the terms of remuneration packages,
determining the award of bonuses and considering the grant
of options under the share option scheme of the Company. As
at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings to review the remuneration
policy, share options granted under the share option scheme
of the Company, remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management in accordance with the Remuneration
Committee’s written terms of reference.

The Company has adopted a director remuneration policy,
it sets out the general principles which guide the Group to
deal with the remuneration matters. This remuneration policy
aims to provide a fair market level of remuneration to retain
and motivate high quality directors, senior management of
the Group and attract experienced people of high calibre to
oversee the business and development of the Group.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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(i) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Xuetai
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai
and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie. The principal responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are to review the composition
of the Board, including its structure, size and diversity at
least annually to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Group. It is also responsible to consider and
recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession planning
of Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also
give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined
below) when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will review the
Board Diversity Policy (as defined below), so as to develop and
review measurable objectives for the implementing the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below) and to monitor the progress
on achieving these objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meetings was
held by the Nomination Committee to, among other things,
review the structure, size and composition of the board, assess
the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors, formulate the board diversity policy and recommend
to the board for approval. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations required for the positions. All candidates must
be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an independent non-executive Director should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the
Board for approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and to consider
the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election
at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board is maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board on 23 January 2015 in compliance with provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss the overall
strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial performance,
and to approve interim and annual results and other significant
matters. For regular meetings, Board members are given at least
14 days prior notice and agenda with supporting papers are sent to
Directors not less than 3 days before the relevant meeting is held.
Directors may propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary
to include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at board meetings and abstain from voting in favour of the related
board resolutions as appropriate.
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Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details of the matters
considered and decisions reached, including dissenting views
expressed, and are open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the board meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are followed.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, a person
may be appointed as a Director either by the shareholders in general
meeting or by the Board. Any Directors appointed by the Board as
additional Directors or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

Mr. Yang Xuetai, being independent non-executive Director has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Each of
Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie have entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year.

Mr. Huang Wenji and Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth, being executive
Directors and Mr. Tso Sze Wai, independent non-executive Director
will be subject to retirement and re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s articles
of association.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 23 January 2015. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. While all Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Chiu Kung Wai, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant, who is an
employee of the Company as the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretary reported to the Board from time to time. All Directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

During the year under review, Mr. Chiu Kung Wai has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training and has fulfiled the
requirement pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is wiling to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The
risk management and internal control system are design to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function
to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group. There is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the internal control system has
been identified by the external advisory firm for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2022,
the risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
were reasonably effective and adequate.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future and not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of the
Company or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.
The responsibilities of Elite Partners CPA Limited, the Company’s
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2022 by band is set out below:
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During the year, the Group engaged external auditor to perform audit
and non-audit services amounted to approximately RMB532,000
and RMBnil respectively. The non-audit services included primarily
ESG reporting advisory, internal control consultancy and reviewing
certain financial information.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTICORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has established the whistle blowing policy which
allows all employees and independent third parties, including
customers, suppliers and contractors, to report any possible
improprieties, misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in matters
of financial reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board
or the Audit Committee anonymously. The Group will handle the
reports and complaints with care and will treat the whistle-blower’s
concerns fairly and properly. The Audit Committee has the overall
responsibility for the whistleblowing policy but has delegated
day-today responsibility for overseeing and implementing it to a
designated officer. Any person who is found to have victimized or
retaliated against those who have raised concerns under this policy
will subject to disciplinary sanctions.

The Group has adopted anti-corruption policy on a zero-tolerance
basis for any form of corruption, including bribery and extortion,
fraud and money laundering, and promise to operate our business
in an honest, ethical and creditable manner. The policies are revised
in due course and all Directors and employees are reminded with
its requirement from time to time. In particular, the Group has
established a code of conduct and stipulated in the compliance
manual of the Company. Additionally, the Group has implemented
an effective internal manual on inside information or price sensitive
information and has provided separate channels for the reporting of
any suspected business irregularities, fraud and corruption.

Please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
contained in this report for more details.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has in place a policy on handling and dissemination
of inside information (“Policy”) which sets out the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place
any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest
available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff
of the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of
inside information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing
the relevant information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable
all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Under the Company’s articles of association,
the shareholder communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

U]

(I

PARTICIPATION AT GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company encourages the participation of
the shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings where the shareholders meet and exchange
views with the Board, and to exercise their right to vote at
meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings
and circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to be
sent to the shareholders no less than 20 business days before
the meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors.

ENQUIRIES AND PROPOSALS TO THE BOARD

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance matters
to the Board and Board Committees at the general meetings
or providing written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room 904,
Loon Kee Building, 275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
or via email to enquiry@jcumbrella.com.
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(i) CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room
904, Loon Kee Building, 275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong, for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s articles of
association or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding
procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election
as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out
above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.

The notice of annual general meeting together with the
accompanying circular setting out the relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting
has been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to one vote.
Details of the poll voting procedures are set out in the circular
sent to shareholders prior to the meeting and explained at
the commencement of the meeting. Voting results are posted
on the Company’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.
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(IV) PROCEDURES FOR PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS (V) REALTSEESNERF

A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the articles of association of BEAQARIEBEZMAFE113G B
the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at mANALT(RE LREHEZEERIN
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for BEBRENBRREAG LEEES K
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general JFEEEHEEE BCBEEEAN
meeting unless notice in writing of the intention to propose FHERRAHEBATERES K
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by FRREZATEZNEDBARBEE
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been BE RXTARTBERERIBSERL
lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the BoBEMATERANRE B TER
Company. The period for lodgement of the notices required TEREBEEES  RRARGSAEEEH
will commerce no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the RETNENZRREAGRITAMA A
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and R AR R E L BANREBRTE
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general PRER-

meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least

seven days.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS ERXH
During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no changein HE T -+ - A=+—HItFE K
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company. UNETEVE R =R N DGRl ) D
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE #H#S8RERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) provides an account of the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) information on the policies, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and key performance of China Jicheng
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (“2022”" or the “year”). The Group is
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of POE umbrellas,
nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as plastic cloth and shaft,
in existing markets, such as the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”),
Hong Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea. The reporting scope
of this ESG Report covers all business activities mentioned above.

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The ESG Report
has been prepared based on four reporting principles listed below,
including materiality, quantitativeness, balance and consistency.

1. Materiality: ESG issues that have major impacts on investors
and other stakeholders must be set out in this ESG Report.

2. Quantitative: If the key performance indicators (KPIs) have
been established, they must be measurable and applicable
to valid comparisons under appropriate conditions. They
must also be able to describe the purpose and impacts of
quantitative information.

3. Balance: This ESG Report must provide an unbiased
picture of the ESG performance of the Company. It should
avoid selecting, omitting, or presenting formants that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgement by the reader.

4. Consistency: This ESG Report should use consistent statistical
methodologies to allow meaningful comparisons of related
data over time. Any changes to the methods used must be
specified in the ESG Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE STRATEGIES

The Group believes that good ESG governance strategies and
practices are essential for corporate success. The Group has
integrated the ESG concept into the corporate governance
management and during the decision-making process, hoping
to create more positive long-term values for the society and
environment.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is devoted to establishing
an effective ESG risk management mechanism. The Board
determines ESG strategies and reviews the content and quality of
the ESG Report annually. To maintain excellent ESG governance,
the Board bears the overall responsibility of the management for
the formulation, execution and reporting of the ESG policies and
performances. The Board is responsible for identifying evaluating
and determining the Group’s ESG-related risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place.

The ESG Working Group, which comprises senior management
and representatives from various departments and subsidiaries, has
been established to formulate, plan and coordinate ESG initiatives
within the Group. The ESG working group has an overarching
role in supporting the Board on the matters of ESG and oversees
the implementation of the ESG initiatives of the Group, including
reviewing the related policies and practices, and assessing and
making recommendations on matters concerning the Group’s ESG
governance, strategy, planning and risks. The ESG working group
is also responsible for stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment. The ESG working group review issues and policies
related to the Group’s sustainable development and coordinate ESG
data management and disclosure in a timely manner.

In order to better govern the ESG performance of the Group,
environmental targets for greenhouse gas emissions, waste
management, energy consumption and water management
have been established. The Group will continue to strive towards
achieving these targets. The Group’s management will review the
progress of these targets, take measures to achieve them and report
on the progress and make suitable suggestions to the Board at least
annually.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group has a comprehensive stakeholder engagement
system that helps maintain good relationships with investors and
shareholders, professional bodies/regulators, customers, suppliers,
employees, local community and other stakeholders. The Group
exchanges opinions and advice from stakeholders through different
communication methods, such as online instant communication,
emails, social platforms, online media interaction and conferences,
etc.
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RE -#HERERRE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEMFMA

By conducting the materiality assessment, the Group has identified i@ 178 257 1E - NE B 5% Bl 35
the key ESG topics which are ‘“relevant” and “important” to our HIXBmME B [HEE] X [EZ ] HEEESG
business. In particular, the material ESG issues listed in the table are  EfE- A2 E * TR A5 HEHEKRESGEE

issues of high priority. AREELENZEE-
Aspects Material ESG Issues
=] EEESGEE
A. Environmental Aspect
A BEEE
A1. Emissions ° Waste management
Al BEERYD s EEYER
A2. Use of Resources ° Energy consumption and efficiency
A2. EREH e BERHBEHE
° Efficient use of raw materials
s  BRMEARME
° Use of packaging materials
o  BEMHEHEA
A4. Climate Change ° Climate-related risks and opportunities
M. RIEEE o SRIRAERE R RS
B.  Social Aspect
B. HEEM
B1. Employment ° Employee welfare
Bl. {EfE e [EEREA

° Inclusion and equal opportunities
s HBRETEHS

° Talent attraction and retention

e WEIRBBAL
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Aspects
=]

B2. Health and Safety
B2. REHEZRZE

B3. Development and Training
B3. ERERIFI

B4. Labour Standards
B4 LT %H|

B5. Supply Chain Management
B5. fHEHEER

B6. Product Responsibility
B6. EmEE

B7. Anti-corruption
B7. RES

B8. Community Investment
B8. HERE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIBE-HERE

Material ESG Issues
EEESGEE

° Occupational health and safety
e BEREREZD

° Development and training
o ERERNIEI

° Prevention of child and forced labour
J PylbE T K& ks T

° Supply chain management

o  HEEER

° Economic value generated

s EENKHEEE

° Customer satisfaction

s EPmEBE

° Protection of intellectual property rights
s REMBERE

° Protection of customer privacy

s REFPILE

o Corporate governance
. D¥ER

° Anti-corruption

s RENF

° Community investment
e HERE

BWE
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RE #H#S8RERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to using resources more efficiently during
our production process. From the Group’s point of view, the efficient
use of raw materials (e.g., POE and nylon) and other packaging
materials are two of the focus areas. We have also implemented
energy saving projects and other measures in order to ensure the
efficient use of energy and water resources.

To reduce resource wastage and environmental impacts, the Group’s
factories follow strictly to ISO 14001, the environmental management
system, during the production operations. The Group has also
minimized the materials used in the manufacturing process so as to
maximize our resource efficiency.

Energy Consumption

Energy management is an important part of any business. To
reduce consumption through more targeted efforts, the Group is
participating in an energy conservation programme and continued
to pursue the efficient use of energy resources. We have improved
our planning on the equipment layout as well as the operational
processes to reduce any redundant consumption of energy and
other resources during production. It is the Group’s policy to maintain
the manufacturing process in an efficient and effective manner.

The Group uses petrol as direct energy consumption for supporting
the company-owned vehicles and electricity as indirect energy
consumption. The total energy consumption in 2022 was 5,483.0
MWh-equivalent; and the energy intensity was 15.5 MWh-e per
million RMB revenue. The details of energy consumption are shown
below:

Direct and indirect energy consumption by type

BRERBSNEER BEER

REEBE
&IRE M

AEERINELEERRTESBFAE
ReWANEBEARM S =8N ARME (10
POENERE) R EMBEMBSETREE
FAS WP EREAEE B REMIEE - A
FEOR =0 RN A BE IR B K B R =

BRIVERRBRREYE AEENIRK
EEE%@L&EPW%LﬂSO 14001B B &

BERX-AEETEIRIEEBRRPFER
MR LR ARREF AER-

BERH 7€

HREAEBME EREEHRERH D
REBEEHHMENERRDER A&HE
F2HE TR 8 LB NN EEIRK
= A o APIBOE R E M BRI EIRER
BOARDEERREFEM IO ENERR
H Al B R E FE o A5 B Y R E M = R
BHHEERE-

NFEBEWMEANTBALAEEMNE R
EOmETERNE N ERERERE - S =
ML FE AB 4830 R E 8 RN EAE
BBEARBIKAISSKEEE S - seFEF157
RIATR

Direct energy consumption — Petrol 463.1 466.1
BHEREFE— U

Indirect energy consumption — Electricity 5,354.4 5,336.1
I8

Total energy consumption 5,483.0 5,465.5
Intensity (by RMB revenug) 15.5 17.9
BRE (AARBRAG)
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B
6,508.1  MWh
KRS
6,627.1  MWh-e
KEREE
19.2  MWh-e/million RMB revenue
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The Group will ensure that they are using these resources in a
sustainable manner, while also taking into account the environmental
impact of their activities. By implementing effective energy
management strategies, the Group can reduce costs while still
meeting its goals for sustainability and profitability.

As energy use is also one of the material ESG topics of the Group,
we will continuously monitor and analyse the consumption data so
as to further improve our utilization of energy resources. The Group
has initiated a target of 5% reduction of energy intensity by 2027,
compared with the baseline year of 2022.

Water Consumption

Since 2016, the Group has implemented the “Water and Electricity
Management System” in its factories, formulating a convention for
employees to save water and electricity. This system helps to reduce
water consumption by monitoring the amount of water used in
production processes and providing guidance on how to use water
resources more efficiently. For instance, some of the water-saving
measures include the wide use of electric water boilers, installation
of automatic control to avoid long-running water and more frequent
maintenance of the water pipe network and equipment to prevent
leakage.

Water is consumed by municipal water supply and the Group did
not encounter any issues in sourcing water during the year. In 2022,
the total water consumption of the Group was 113,704.1 cubic
meters; and the water intensity was 322.1 cubic meters per million
RMB revenue. The Group aims at reducing water intensity in our
operations by 10% by 2027 against the 2022 baseline.

Water consumption in total and intensity 2022 2021
BREKERBE —F--fF —F-—fF
Total water consumption 118,704.1 142,867.0
BEKE

Intensity (by RMB revenue) 322.1 466.9

TR (BARBRAGE)

RRE HERERKSE

AEEBERATFESAEAZEER
R TEEELAZBHHRENTE - BRER
B BEIRE BRES  AEE A REKE [
RO ERERREERLANEINER-

HREERERTARNEENEZESGHE
— RS EERY DT REBUR - LA —
TREHERNMBX AERECRERLOT
BN —F/EE R _T_LFH

1 8E R E R IK5% -

ﬁ%é

B-ZE—AFE AKRERETHRERKE
AIEN;LJ REBHIEMHKBERL Z K

REREREERREBTIMNAKE LM
FAEMIERKERREES R HE
IKE-Flin o EKBHERERZEHAER
KB - ZEAHITHEBEUREARKEA
MANFE RS EERKE R RREUR LR
K o

KT R KR 4 AN &R B A A R 7E SRERK
JREWEBREMBEB S —F AEH
B AAFEKE B113,704 1S K BAKEE B
FABITARBIAZ22.137 17 K o AN 5= E HY)
BEERUN-_ZE-_FRAEE R_ZT_£F
AT B P9 2B ) FR K 35 JE AR 10% o

2020
—BEF
123,287.0 m?
NHAK
358.0  m®milion RMB revenue
NAK/BETARERA
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RE #H#S8RERRE

Use of Packaging Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group are primarily plastic
wrapping films and carton boxes, of which the sizes are determined
according to the requirements of different customers. As efficient
use of packaging materials is one of our focuses, the Group makes
every effort to minimize any wastage. More specifically, the Group
has stopped using plastic bags for individual products since 2019.

In 2022, the total amount of packaging materials used for finished
products was 204.9 tonnes, and the intensity of packaging material
use was 0.58 tonnes per million RMB revenue.

Packaging material for finished products 2022 2021
B £ A B B 2 ARt B ZBC--F
Total packaging material used 204.9 418.7
ERNBEMHES

Intensity (by RMB revenue) 0.58 1.37

TE (AARBRAGE)
EMISSIONS

The Group’s umbrella manufacturing business closely relates to
environmental protection — one of our core values. As a leader of
Asia’s umbrella industry, the Group complies strictly with relevant
laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
and follows specific actions taken by different countries closely. To
achieve emission reduction, the Group has implemented numerous
energy-saving projects, e.g., replacing high emission equipment. The
production operations in our factories are completed in accordance
with ISO 14001 standard.

Violating the environmental regulations may result in temporary
suspension of production. In 2022, the Group did not have any
material non-compliance with the environmental protection laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, such
as the Environmental Protection Law, Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution, Prevention and Control of Water Pollution,
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste
and National Environmental Emergency Response Plan of the PRC.
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Air Emissions

In 2022, the use of vehicles and other mobile equipment in our PRC
operations was the major source of air pollutant emissions. These
emissions contain Nitrogen oxides (NO,), Sulphur oxides (SO,), and
Respirable suspended particles (RSP). The emission figures are
shown in the table below.

Air emissions

BER B

RRE HERERKSE

BRAH

BT = =4 4R R P o T
RS R A B R R ERS RN
0 BAOR - KB P E B AAILNNO,)
AL N(SO) KA AR AL T (RSP) © 4
BBIR I T R FR -

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) 761.4
AEA (NOx)

Sulphur oxides (SOx) 1.5 1.5
R a b ¥(S0y

Respirable suspended particles (RSP)

AR A SR F R F (RSP)

2,261.4

471 143.1

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The total greenhouse gas emissions in 2022 was about 3,145.7
tonnes of carbon dioxide-equivalent (“CO,-e"). The primary source
of greenhouse gas emissions was energy indirect emissions (“Scope
2 emissions”) of purchased electricity — 98.9%; whereas direct
emissions (“Scope 1 emissions”) by combustion of fuels in mobile
sources and other indirect emissions (“Scope 3 emissions”) were
relatively insignificant — 1.0% and 0.1% respectively. For details,
please refer to the table below.

Greenhouse gas emissions

940.6 kg
TR

1.0 kg
TR

58.6 kg
T
BEREHK

TR _FRAERBHNMEEN /31457
WAL E EORERBEMMEENRR
RABEENMEREEHR (TE8E2HM])
1598.9% : MEBBEFRIREIREE LN EE
BEmR (TEENBEM] ) REMEE P (T8 E
SHE ) BB D BI1E1.0% 50.1% ° &F
BRES2HE T &R

BERBHER

Scope 1 - Direct emissions 32.7 32.9
#HE BN

Scope 2 - Energy indirect emissions 3,110.9 3,100.5
#E2 — e REEHER

Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions 2.2 6.3
E3 —HtEEHER

Total greenhouse gas emissions 3,145.7 3,139.5
BRERBEHNE

Intensity (by RMB revenue) 15.5 10.3

TR (MARBRAGE)

As greenhouse gas emission is the key cause of climate change, the
Group will continue to look for ways to reduce the emissions in the
future. The Group plans to reduce 10% of our emission intensity by
2027 ahead of the 2022 baseline.

30.3  tonnes CO,-e
W i =
3,970.6  tonnes COy-e
WM-ftiRES
29.0  tonnes CO,-e
M_aftiEE
4,029.9  tonnes CO,-e
WS i =
11.7  tonnes CO,-e/million RMB revenue

M-—EltiHEE BETARBKA

HREEREHRRRBEELCHETERRA"
REBRRBEES LB OEREN S %o
REBMHEU-_SE-_—FAEE R %
ZEFRBEEREERA10% °
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RE #H#S8RERRE

Waste Management

In 2022, the Group did not produce any hazardous waste from
its manufacturing process. For non-hazardous wastes, such as
discarded packaging materials and domestic waste of offices, a total
amount of 241.0 tonnes was produced. The Group aims at reducing
non-hazardous waste intensity in our operations by 5% by 2027
against the 2022 baseline.

To further reduce the quantity of non-hazardous waste generated,
the Group has implemented centralized management for production,
construction and installation, monitoring and testing, maintenance
and other activities of various departments.

As a large portion of the waste generated was domestic waste from
office, the Group has taken the following actions to reduce waste
generation:

° Encourage communication through e-mails to reduce the use
of papers;

° Adopt duplex printings and reuse single-sided printed papers;
and

° Monitor the production process to reduce errors and duplicate

productions.
Non-hazardous waste 2021
BEREEY = —E=-F
Total non-hazardous waste produced 241.0 247.0
EEMBERENEE
Intensity (by RMB revenue) 0.68 0.81

BE (MARBRAGE)
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Although “the environment and natural resources” is not identified as
one of our material ESG issues, the Group acknowledges that it is
the responsibility of every business to minimize any possible negative
impacts on the natural environment.

For instance, a certain amount of sewage, air pollutants and waste
are inevitably generated by the production processes and domestic
activities of our workers. To reduce the Group’s impacts on the
environment and natural resources, we have implemented various
measures including enhanced control on domestic sewage and air
emissions and more centralized management to avoid “secondary
pollution” caused by the mishandling of waste.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Concerns about climate change have been rising significantly over
the past decade. All countries are most vulnerable to this threat
and will suffer greatly if no action is taken. The impact of climate
change on the manufacturing sector today is something that cannot
be disputed. As a result, it is important for Group to have a risk
management strategy in place to protect their operations from the
effects of climate change.

Physical Risks

Since climate change may increase the severity and frequency
of extreme weather conditions, like typhoons and heavy rain, the
product quality of our umbrella should be increased to support
stronger wind and heavier rainfalls. In order to minimize disruption
to our business operations, the Group has formulated a set of
contingency measures for severe weather to minimize the negative
impact on the business. In addition, the Group is also fully aware
that extreme weather conditions may endanger the health and
safety of employees. Therefore, we have developed comprehensive
arrangements for conditions including typhoons, rainstorms and heat
waves to protect the health and safety of our employees in extreme
weather conditions.

The Board and ESG working group will also meet to discuss the
impact of extreme weather events such as typhoons, heavy rain, and
other natural disasters on their factory locations. The potential risks
are identified during the meeting and they will develop strategies to
mitigate them.

RE #H8RERBRE
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RE #H#S8RERRE

Transition Risks

Policy actions and emerging technologies on climate change will
continue to develop, for example, switching to low-carbon energy
sources and supporting the transition to a low-carbon economic
system may bring risks to the Group’s technological transformation
and increase its costs.

The impression of customers, the community and the media on
whether the Group can commit to low-carbon transformation
may also bring risks to the Group’s image and reputation. The
Group will also explore the possibility of enhancing the efficiency of
material use, recycling, and the reuse of the materials to reduce the
emissions of greenhouse gases during production.

In terms of legal risks, the Group expects that the laws and
regulations related to climate change in China and Hong Kong will
be more stringent. For example, local governments may adopt more
aggressive policies and measures to limit greenhouse emissions and
energy consumption. Therefore, the Group might be exposed to
legal risks and may need to bear higher operating costs to comply
with regulatory changes. In response to possible legal risks, the
Group will continue to monitor any changes in laws or regulations.

The management of the Group will take adequate steps to build its
resilience to climate change by identifying and managing climate
change risks and opportunities and by developing strategies which
are in line with global best practices to adapt to and mitigate the
impact of climate change on its operations.
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SOCIAL ASPECT
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment

As a labour-intensive business, the Group’s success highly relies on
the effort contributed by the employees. The Group has adopted
practices and policies of Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract
Law of the PRC and other relevant laws. The Group has in place
human resources management system that contain specific terms
to address compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods
and other benefits and welfare for our staff.

The Group’s employee handbook distributed to employees also
highlights important information of policies on compensation,
employee benefits, rights on termination, business conduct and
leave benefits. Any appointment, promotion or termination of
employment contract would be based on reasonable, lawful grounds
and internal policies, such as the employee handbook. The Group
strictly prohibits any kind of unfair or unreasonable dismissals.

In 2022, the total number of employees in Hong Kong and China
was 571; the gender ratio between male and female employees was
approximately 1:1.1. The distributions of employees categorized by
gender and age group are as follows:

RE #H8RERBRE
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Number of Employee
By Gender
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Number of Employee
By Age Group
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During the year, the Group did not have record of any material non-
compliance relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity
and discriminations.
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RE #H#S8RERRE

Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to the occupational health and
safety of employees. In order to minimize workplace accidents and
put the health and safety of the staff as the priority of production,
the Group has established a set of Staff Handbook, which include
aspects such as safety policies. Every worker is required to follow
safety instructions. To enable organizations to provide safe and
healthy workplaces by preventing work-related injury and ill health,
as well as by proactively improving its occupational health and safety
performances, the Group also adopts GB/T28001 “Occupational
Health and Safety Management System Specifications”, which
provide requirements with guidance to use.

Workplaces are equipped with fire and safety facilities to prevent
and control outbreak of fire accidents. Also, the functionality of the
fire facilities is regularly checked. Our staff have been trained and
equipped with basic knowledge in using fire extinguishing equipment.
Fire drills are also regularly conducted. There are strict requirements
for staff in clothing, access of non-operational staff, and knowledge
of workplace hazards to ensure the safety of our employees.

The Group organizes regular annual health checks and regular
training on occupational health, safety, and hygiene for employees.
Public canteens, fitness equipment, employee activity rooms,
collective protection equipment, first aid, and emergency treatment
are provided for employees.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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During the year, the Group had no reported incidents of significant
non-compliance with the laws and regulations concerning workplace
health and safety, such as the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance, Safety Production Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Occupational Disease Prevention Law. The Group had no reported
work-related injuries and fatalities in the year 2020, 2021 and 2022.
The Group will continue to improve the safety management system
in order to protect employees’ health and safety in the workplace.

RRE HERERKSE

FRAAEEYEBINEHEEEER TS
FriE e 2HERMOER (I (BELER
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K (BERPDAZE) )BE - R_T_FF -

TECFRIFICF - AKRELTERE
TERRTCERNRE - AEEREE TS
;zA”**IE%HF“ R E BN TS ATH 2 R

Number of work-related fatalities TEBEMILTHAZL
Rate of work-related fatalities TITX
Lost days due to work injury TIEBAIIEEH

Development and Training

The Group encourages its employees to advance and improve
themselves. Therefore, the Group has held various internal and
external training programs for employees’ further development.
Our staff are regularly assigned to attend training courses such
as management certificate studies, first aids training, and top-up
courses for specialized skills.

In 2022, there were a total of 486 employees who took part in
training. In other words, the percentage of employees trained was
85%; whereas the breakdown by female and male employees were
52% and 48% respectively. The average training hours per employee
were 22.3 hours per employee during the year. The subjects of
training include orientation, pre-job training, on-the-job training, fire
safety, professional skills and so on. The Group also gather feedback
and recommendations from staff members after the trainings to
improve the quality and effectiveness of future trainings provided.
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Percentage of Trained Employee
By Function
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By Level
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Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Protection of Minors and as
stipulated by the Labour Law of the PRC in terms of employment
management. Our Staff Handbook also clearly stipulates that no one
under the age of 18 shall be employed. To combat against illegal
employment on child labour, underage workers and forced labour,
the Group’s human resources staff requires job applicants to provide
valid identity documents before confirmation of employment to
ensure that the applicants are lawfully employable.

In 2022, the Group was not found in violation of any relevant laws
and regulations in relation to the prevention of child and forced
labour. Furthermore, there had not been any no dispute on forced
labour reported between the Group and its teams of staff. For the
coming year, we will maintain our zero tolerance to forced and child
labour.
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OPERATING PRACTICES AND SOCIAL INVESTMENT
Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to ensuring its supply chain operates
efficiently so that our products are standardized and safe. In order
to maintain long-term relationship with our suppliers, the Group has
established a comprehensive vertical supply chain management
system through supplier screening and management as well as
resources integration. In 2022, the Group had 282 suppliers of which
98% are located in China; whereas other suppliers are mainly from
other Asian regions.

The Group’s materials are purchased from qualified suppliers whose
products meet the requirements of applicable environmental and
social law and regulations in the operating regions. We advocate
green procurement to maximize the use of environmentally preferable
products in our daily operations whenever possible. All procured
materials used were environmentally friendly and non-hazardous,
which protect our land and water from being contaminated during
disposal.

Besides, the Group gives priority to local suppliers when developing
businesses all over the country in order to create employment
opportunities for local communities, reduce the generation of
greenhouse gas emissions by shorter transportation routes and
fulfil corporate social responsibility. Excessive reliance on single
large suppliers is avoided to diversify the procurement risks. The
breakdown of suppliers by geographical region is as below.

R EE 5 H
HEFHE
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The Group has formulated the “Purchasing Management System”,
“Supplier Management System”, “Production Management
System”, “Outsourcing Processing Management Measures”, etc.
The Group screens and evaluates suppliers in accordance with the
above management systems. The purchasing department, quality
department and financial director are responsible for the supplier
management and assessment.

The Group’s “Supplier Management System” requires that the
purchasing department should conduct quality inspections or on-
site inspections on suppliers. The suppliers providing raw materials
are the major type of suppliers of the Group. For them, the Group
evaluates the performance of the major vendors on whether the
quality of raw materials passes our requirements and standards.

The evaluation criteria of the suppliers include quality level, delivery
ability, price level, technical ability, back-up service and current
cooperation status, etc. Preference is also given to environmentally
and socially responsible suppliers, such as contractors who prioritise
the purchase of reusable and renewable products or adopt low-
emission production processes, etc. Appropriate training or briefing
on our standards and acceptance check procedures should be
provided to suppliers if needed. Raw materials below our quality
standards would be returned to the corresponding suppliers.

Suppliers are required to reduce their environmental pollution and
control occupational health and safety risks during the production
process. The Group requires its suppliers and contractors to comply
with any applicable environmental laws and regulations. Suppliers
need to submit relevant environmental protection certifications and
conduct environmental quality inspections for their supplied products
before delivery.

Product Responsibility

The Group has put product quality as our first priority since the
performance of products can directly affect the relationship with
customers as well as the reputation of our business. In view of it, the
Group has introduced the quality management system, ISO 9001,
to meet our customers’ expectations and maintain their satisfaction
level.

During the Reporting Period, our operation in Hong Kong the
PRC did not have material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided.
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Product Quality

For product quality management, the Group endeavours to identify
product quality problems as early as possible and address them
promptly. As a testament, we employ “Plastic umbrella product
standards and test methods” ((¥BRBRRERIFELRERTE))
and “Nylon umbrella product standards and test methods” ( </E B
RE RIZE R 5 5 E) ) to control product quality. Quality control
covers raw materials quality control, manufacturing process quality
control and finished product quality control.

The products of the Group are subject to the Product Quality Law
of the PRC ((FEARKEFBEEREEE) ) which ensures our
responsibility to compensate for damages done to persons or
property in case of defected products. In 2022, the Group did not
have any products returned due to safety or health problems.

Complaint Handling

In the event of a customer complaint, the sales staff will first contact
the customer to understand the full picture of the incident. If the
customer complaint is not related to product quality, such as colour,
quantity or delivery issues, the sales department will handle it by
itself immediately. If the customer complaint project is a major quality
abnormality, the salesperson will fill in the “Customer Complaint
Handling Form” and notify the production department to collect
relevant information on the possible reasons of the defective product.
The cases will then be transferred to the quality department or the
research and development (‘R&D”) center to determine the counter-
measures. Finally, the staff from the sales department will take the
initiative to coordinate with the customer to explain the reasons,
and negotiate whether to take discounts, returns and other handling
methods. During the year, the Group has received 6 complaints
which were not related to product quality from our customers and
the complaints have been resolved.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group has always attached great importance to the protection
of intellectual property rights and formulated the “Confidentiality
System” and “R&D Management System” to maintain and protect
intellectual property rights. The Group has special personnel
responsible for intellectual property management to register and
maintain various intellectual property rights of the Group in a timely
manner.

RE #H8RERBRE

EmnEE

REREEEEMS AKERNEREHR
EmEERBEY LEFER RMACH CERR
EmBRENERT R M(EERERRE
K nik) EHlEREE AAEHE—
HoHEEBIRERMHEEEY  £EBE
BEEFMRMmEETS -

N

AEEMERX (FEARKNBERELE
E) RIR -8 PR E QB A B B SRR B E A
MAFHERRAERERET R T
FAKBEYEETMNERRLTERERRE
4 [E] o

I

WBEERFPRF HEABKEEBMEES
NEETHEHENBR - WEPRFEEM
EEEE (N hEC HEXXEME)
HEMBIANBTRE - WX PRFEEE
BAEEER HEABBES (BRFEFE
BR)  WiBMAEEISPIWE G R ] LA E
MBRENREAMEBERS -FHREREES
ERXEMEPRFEPL - AT FEE -
B HESETHIHATFHA HER
B UiHERaEIin REREMEES
FeFR AEBEZEREERLEEERY
BRERF B BEARFOBER-

I8 HE
AEB-—BESEERMABERNRE HIE
TARBHIE) M HBEEESE) - A&
MREMNBEE - AKRBEREEABENH
ERER MREINEERNEEZHMNR
EtE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022 F 1]

47



48

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE #H#S8RERRE

Consumer Data Protection

In order to protect consumer data and privacy, client information is
kept confidential and will be destroyed on a timely basis. The Group
has formulated the “Confidentiality System”, “Customer Management
Rules”, and “Computerized Information Management Regulations”.
The systems require that confidential files and data in the computer
must be set with passwords and must not be brought to places
unrelated to work. The employees shall not discuss and hand over
confidential files/data in public places and leak confidential file data
to irrelevant personnel inside and outside the company in any way,
to ensure that customer privacy data is not leaked.

Anti-Corruption

The Group sees integrity as the key to sustainable development of
the Group. The Group strives to maintain high standards of business
integrity in its operation, and we have no tolerance towards any
corruption, fraud, money laundering, bribery, and extortion. In 2022,
the Group did not have any concluded legal cases regarding anti-
corruption or material non-compliance laws and regulations relevant
to the activity of the Group, such as Criminal law of the PRC ( { /1
Z= ARAMEIFE) ) and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
PRC ((REARKEFMERTEEFEFIE) ).

The Group also recognizes that a management system with good
moral integrity and anti-corruption mechanisms is the cornerstone
for the sustainable and healthy development of the Group. The
Group has in place procedures to comply with guidelines on anti-
money laundering and counter-terrorist financing. Any suspicious
transactions would be notified and reported to the relevant governing
body by a responsible officer.

The Group regards credibility as the key to its long-term development
and is committed to maintaining a high standard of business
credibility in the business process. The Group has formulated the
internal “Whistleblowing and Suggestion Box Management System”,
and will not tolerate any corruption, fraud, money laundering, bribery
and extortion.
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The Group also regularly promotes anti-fraud policies and
requirements to all directors and employees, supervises employees’
integrity and participates in anti-corruption training. During the year,
the Group provided the directors and employees with 48 hours
of anti-corruption training. 100% of our directors and 46% of our
employees attended the training in 2022. Striving to reduce the
risk of corruption, the Group has actively strengthened the culture
of integrity and consistently incorporated anti-corruption in its
governance at all business levels.

Community Investment

It is our belief that being a good community leader is fundamental to
be a good business leader. The Group sees this as a responsibility of
being a successful company. As such, the Group believes in giving
back to the society. The Group makes effect in evaluating community
programmes that prompt the same ideology of the Group and the
Group makes substantial monetary contribution.

In 2022, the Group has donated a total of RMB334,000 to various
recognised charity organisations with educational and health
focuses. The beneficiaries include Jinjiang Yonghe Town Basketball
Association (“ & LMK FISEEKHE "), Jinjang Charity Federation
(“BLM&AZ €, Changting Tongxin School (“ £3T 5 B0 242"
and Jinjiang Dongshi Town Charity Federation (‘&I R A EE=
#="), The Group will continue to contribute to the development of
local communities by supporting charitable organisations.
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SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS HRENIEEME
Environmental Aspects' 2022 2021 2020  Unit
RIEEM ZECZE ZEZ-§ CZZEZZE Ef

Aspect A1: Emissions
BREA B

A1.1  The types of emissions and respective emissions data

M1 BRYEEREBREHREE

Nitrogen oxides (NOy) 7614 2,261.4 940.6 kg
AEl (NOK) =
Sulphur oxides (SOy) 15 1.5 1.0 kg
TS0y T
Respirable suspended particles (RSP) 471 143.1 58.6 kg
IR A M B F R F (RSP) T=

A1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
A2 RERBESHEREE

Scope 1 emissions 32.7 32.9 30.3  tonnes CO,-e

HEHHE B_f(iREE

Scope 2 emissions 3,110.9 3,100.3 3,970.6  tonnes CO,-e

HEHME WM_altiREE

Scope 3 emissions 2.2 6.3 29.0  tonnes GO,

HEHME W_altiES

Total greenhouse gas emissions 3,145.7 3,139.5 4,029.9  tonnes CO,-e

mERBANE M_f(iREE

Intensity (by RMB revenue) 8.9 10.3 117 tonnes CO,-e/million RMB revenue

BE (MARBRAHE) M_SltiRkEe BETAREKA
A1.4  Non-hazardous waste
M4 EBEBEY

Total non-hazardous waste produced 241.0 247.0 234.0  tonnes

FEAREREEYHASE 1

Intensity (by RMB revenue) 0.68 0.81 0.68  tonnes/million RMB revenue

BE (MARBRAHE) W/ BETARBKA

i The environmental KPIs are calculated in accordance with the “How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.
i REBRBERUEEIRRE AT M [ HERIRE e RERME ? P08 =  RRERENIERERES FE -
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Environmental Aspects 2022
REEE i St 2

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: ERER

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
21 RERASNEER REEEREE

Direct energy consumption 463.1
ERERERES

Indirect energy consumption 5,354.4
RERRERE

Total energy consumption 5,483.0
EREREE

Intensity (by RMB revenue) 15.5

BE (AARBRAGE)

A22  Water consumption in total and intensity
R2 HEKERTE

Total water consumption 113,704.1
BREKE
Intensity (by RMB revenue) 322.1

EE (MARBKRAGE)

A25  Packaging material used for finished products

A5 EERAEREMRE

Total packaging material used 204.9
MABEMHES
Intensity (by RMB revenue) 0.58

BE (MARBKRAGE)

2021
—EBE--F

466.1

5,336.1

5,465.5

17.9

142,867.0

466.9

418.7

1.37

2020
=

428.4

6,508.1

6,627.1

19.2

123,287.0

358.0

234.0

0.68

Unit
By

GJ

Bl

MWh

KEE

MWh-e

KEKEE

MWh-e/million RMB revenue
kRKEE /BETARBRA

mS
MK
m3/million RMB revenue

UHAK/BETARBHA

tonnes
i
tonnes/million RMB revenue
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Social Aspects? 2022 2021 2020  Unit
HEEE ZEICZF B “EZRE  Ef
Aspect B1: Employment
BBl EfR
B1.1  Total workforce
Bll EEAH
Total number of employees 571 800 1,062  employee
EEHH %EE
By gender Female 300 359 461 employee
RIERIE D 7t %ZER
Male 271 441 601  employee
S ZER
By employment type Full-time 571 800 - employee
RERERRES 2R %EE
Part-time 0 0 - employee
#B %EE
By age group 30 years old or below 234 354 571 employee
RERERIE D 30 A T %ER
31-40 years old 215 297 335  employee
31-405% 2EE
41-50 years old 90 125 131 employee
41-503%, 2REE
Qver 50 years old 32 24 25  employee
505K A 1 %EE
By employee category Management 12 12 - employee
RIESERED EHEE %EER
Middle Level 7 7 - employee
H R %EE
Junior Level 482 711 - employee
DNk 2EE
By geographical region Hong Kong 4 4 - employee
REE D B %EER
China 567 796 - employee
i %EE
2 The social KPIs are calculated in accordance with the “How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on

Social KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.
3 AR ERIEIRRRE R PTRM Y (MR e RERRE ? M= L SBREREFERIES | HE-
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Social Aspects

HEEHE
B1.2  Employee turnover rate
Bl.2 EERAE

Total employee turnover rate
BREERAX

By gender

RIERIES

By employment type
RERELE D

By age group
RERERIE D

By employee category
RESRRESD

By geographical region
‘g g S

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BB REHRZE

B2.1
B2.1

B2.2
B2.2

Number of work-related fatalities
ATEBEMETHAR
Rate of work-related fatalities
EIftr %

Lost days due to work injury
EIBEATIERY

Female

peg i

Male

S

Full-time

2B
Part-time

#B

30 years old or below
307% KA T
31-40 years old
31-405%
41-50 years old
41-507%,

Over 50 years old
5057 £
Management
ERE
Middle Level

H ik

Junior Level
MR

Hong Kong
N6

China

i

2022
—E-CF

40%

20%

63%

40%

0%

31%

39%

25%

0%

0%

48%

0%

40%

0%

2021
—E--F

35%

30%

38%

35%

65%

13%

8%

4%

0%

3%

39%

0%

35%

0%

2020
SE i
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Social Aspects 2022 2021
HEEE “BI-F ZB--F

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[ETEB3 : & RIEH

B3.1 Percentage of trained employees
B31 FIEEEAL

Total number of trained employees 486 518
RiEERE
Percentage of total employees trained 85% 65%
BXIEEBDL
By gender Female 52% 52%
RIERIE D peg i
Male 48% 48%
St
By level Management 2% 2%
RERE D ERE
Middle Level 16% 82%
R
Junior Level 82% 7%
PIES
By function Executive 7% 7%
BB meEn
Technical 18% 17%
it
Administrative 8% 8%
T8
Production 67% 68%
FE

B3.2  Average training hours completed
B32 FIEIIEEH

Average training hours per employee 22.3 17.0
T4 E 8 TIEIIR 2
By gender Female 21.0 18.7
RILFIE S 7t
Male 23.9 15.6
Ex]:d
By level Management 73.3 80.0
RERES EEE
Middle Level 29.6 132.5
RR
Junior Level 19.9 14.3
Nk
By function Executive 51.2 57.6
R E D ReEE
Technical 53.7 54.0
Bty
Administrative 5.3 4.0
1T}
Production 21.2 15.2
kE
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43%
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2EE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -#HERERRE

Social Aspects
HEEE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[ETEBS : tEHERE

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
B51 RHEBEIASNUEBRHE
Total number of suppliers
HEREH
By geographical region China
B @3 5D ]
Japan
AA
Singapore
Gimlibe
Taiwan

4k
=/s

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BEB6 : ERELE

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls

Bl EENCEXEMRBRHLUBESL

B6.2  Number of products and service-related complaints received

B62 EHERMNEMMRBHNRFAE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7  RES

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corruption
B71 EEHENBSHARMHE
B7.3  Anti-corruption training
B7.3 RESHEA
Number of anti-corruption training sessions
REFEIIRE
Total number of training hours related to anti-corruption
B 75 1 5 Bl B By 2

Percentage of employees with Directors
anti-corruption training
SNRESEINEERN L %

General employees

—REE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
BEBS : tERE

B8.2  Resources contributed
B2 FEIAER
Total amount of donation in cash

R RHER

2022

—E-CF

282

275

0%

48

100%

46%

334,000

2021
—E--F

261

257

0%

48

86%

30%

3,400,000

2020
—EC_EEF

260

256

410,000

Unit
B

supplier
LHER
supplier
LHER
supplier
LHER
supplier
LHER
supplier

B ER

%

3t 3

case

~

no.
Py

hour
NS

%

%
%
%

HKD
BT
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEBEFE

DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenji (=3 £ ) , aged 54, is the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Huang was appointed as a Director on 12 June 2014 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 25 September 2014. He
founded our Group in May 1996 and is responsible for the overall
management, strategic development and major decision-making
of our Group. Mr. Huang is a Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Huang
completed his secondary education in the PRC in July 1987.

Mr. Yang Guang (#53¢) , aged 54, was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group in November
2007 as financial controller as well as secretary to the board of
directors of Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd. (i8R B ¥H

A F]) (“Fujian Jicheng”). Mr. Yang has been the deputy general
manager of Fujian Jicheng since November 2010, and is responsible
for supervising our Group’s production. He worked for A& 45 %
A% 12 B R A &) (Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd.) as finance officer from
November 1999, and was promoted to finance manager in August
2001. He then worked for t&i&)8 &£ B AR A A (Fujan Xunxing
Group Company Limited) as finance manager from May 2002 to
October 2007. Mr. Yang graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics with finance major in July 1994.

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang (# 5 %), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group
in August 2001 and is the manager of the international business
department of Jinjiang Jicheng Industry Co., Ltd. (B IE/KETH
fR2A]) (“Jinjiang Jicheng”). He is responsible for supervising our
Group’s sales and marketing operations. Mr. Lin graduated from
Huagiao University with a diploma in Japanese Language in June
2000.

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ({E{£7%f) , aged 56, was appointed an
executive Director of the Company on 13 April 2015. He has more
than 10 years’ experience in project management and business
strategic planning. Mr. Chung worked as a production manager
in the field of consumer electronics products for over 5 years and
his responsibilities mainly focused on overseeing the production
process. Mr. Chung is responsible for the strategic planning and
finance of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSNEBEAEBREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai (& T %), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 7 October 2016. Mr. Tso
holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce awarded by University of New
South Wales, Australia and a postgraduate diploma in Computing in
the University of Western Sydney, Australia. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20
years of experience in accounting, corporate finance and corporate
secretarial matters. He is also an independent non-executive
directors of China Asia Valley Group Limited (Stock Code: 63). He is
also an independent non-executive directors of two companies the
shares of which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange, namely
Net Pacific Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: SGX:5QY), since
July 2020 and KTL Global Limited (Stock Code: SGX:EB7), since
June 2020 and subsequently resigned on August 2021. He was the
financial controller and company secretary of Green Energy Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 979). He had held senior management positions in a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Mr. Yang Xuetai (522 KX), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 January 2015. Mr. Yang
graduated from China Academy of Art with a bachelor degree in
industrial design in July 1998 and a master degree in art in January
2010. He has been working for the art faculty of The Huagiao
University as assistant professor since 2010. He had also been a
visiting scholar of Tunghai University in Taiwan for five months in
2012.

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (= 4%53%) , aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 August 2015. Ms. Lee
holds a Postgraduate certificate in Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong and Diploma in Accounting from
The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and Continuing
Education. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of experience in finance and
administration. She has worked for various foreign and multi-national
organisation.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Liangping (2| R ¥ ) , aged 54, is the manager of the Group’s
research and development department. He joined our Group in
2000 as manager of the production department of Jinjiang Jicheng.
He has later become the manager of the Group’s research and
development department and is responsible for supervising our
Group’s product design, and research and development operations.
Mr. Liu completed his secondary education in the PRC in June 1986.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and sale of
umbrellas and the relevant products. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review in respect of the Group’s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and the material factors underlying its
results and financial position, principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, as well as the Group’s environmental policies, are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 13 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
committed adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. We strive to minimize
our environmental impact by energy saving, recycling of used
papers, office supplies and other materials. For details, please refer
to the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report” on pages 30 to 55 of this report.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any incidence of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.
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RELATIONS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises that our employees are one of the greatest
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with competitive remuneration
package and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills to attract and retain our employees. The Board
reviews the remuneration package of our employees annually and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the prevailing market
practices. The Group also adopted share options scheme to reward
the contribution of the employees as an incentive.

The Board also strives to develop long-standing and good
relationships with our customers and suppliers in order to achieve
the Group’s long-term goals.

During the year, there was no significant dispute between the Group
and our business partners.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, aggregate sales to the
Group’s largest and top five customers accounted for approximately
37% (2021: approximately 28%) and approximately 73% (2021:
approximately 70%), respectively, of the Group’s total Revenue for
the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, aggregate purchases
from the Group’s largest and top five suppliers of raw materials
accounted for approximately 18% (2021: approximately 16%) and
approximately 48% (2021: approximately 34%), respectively, of the
Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder of the Company (who or which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Group’s top five customers and
suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 172 of
the annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to
171 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in
note 36(B) and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There was no reserve available for distribution to the shareholders of
the Company as at 31 December 2022.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure an optimal capital structure and shareholder returns when its
dividend policy considers:

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

° return on equity and other corresponding restrictions of the
Group;

° the Group’s capital requirement and surplus;
° the Group’s liquidity position;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of the
Company; and

° other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board will continue to review the Group’s dividend policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period. The payment of
dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the applicable laws
and the Company’s Articles of Association.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group donated approximately RMB334,000
(2021: approximately RMB7,400,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
latest practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenji

Mr. Yang Guang

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai
Mr. Yang Xuetai
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie

Pursuant to Article 108 and Article 112 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Huang Wenji and Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth
being executive Directors, and Mr. Tso Sze Wai, being independent
non-executive Director shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All the retiring Directors are eligible for re-elections.

During the year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report,
Mr. Huang Weniji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth are also directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other director of the Company’s
subsidiaries include Mr. Chen Ruixin.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PERERIERAR AR

RANDRERE

REBEARAARBMGHOER  AERARF
EEMA RARETEAMNRRERAT
BH - ARR#F EmARRTSRE N QRE

B8 -

BrEERE

RN A RO A A S AR A Y sl R R AR SZ B
EHRSRENEMLEETEERGR -

BE - HEIFEIAQFAN LHE S

AARRHIMMBARREBEE T -4
+ A=+ BLTFEMEEE ELQH
EXRQNBEMA LEHES-

BEE
RUBRFEARBEAREAR2EER:

HITES

BXELE
Bk E

MEEELE
Ry e

BYFITES

EReLE
BEARE
FRERL

REBEARRHEBZZMANFE108E R FE112
R ATEETEXERERERBELREAR
BUFNTETERRAEEBNERELRRE
FRAERE-ZBRIEFHHAEREER
i

REARBEEAESEREAY BEXER
EBRiE MERRERERELRETS
ARAETHEBRAR ZES -ARAMER
AIMEMEEEERInE -



DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2022,

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations of
the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) which will have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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LONG POSITIONS IN THE COMPANY RAXANEFR

Approximately
Number of  percentage of

Name of Director Nature of Interests Capacity issued shares shareholding
BT B4
EEnE EaEE =2} ROBE FHRESHK
Mr. Huang Wenii (Note 1) Long Position Interest in a controlled corporation and 125,030,900 30.31%
beneficial owner

B A (M) e REZEGEENER R EREE A

Mr. Yang Guang Long Position Beneficial owner 1,890,000 0.46%

Bt e EnlEEA

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang Long Position Beneficial owner 1,890,000 0.46%

MEEELE e EnlEEA

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth Long Position Beneficial owner 1,890,000 0.46%

ey e EnEEA

Mr. Tso Sze Wai Long Position Beneficial owner 1,890,000 0.46%

BERMgEE e EnEEA

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie Long Position Beneficial owner 1,890,000 0.46%

FHEELL e EnEEA

Notes: Bt 5
1. Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by 1. Jicheng Investment Limited & XX &L £ 2

Mr. Huang Weniji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Wenji is deemed to be BEREmER B BIEES REAE GO
interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under = X & 5T A AR /E A Jicheng Investment
the SFO. Limited P 5 B £ 7 %8 A R &5

Saved as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of & X #HEE I B $#h’z AE - BRAR A
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their RIEE S K EIE 0| F£35216BF E M E A
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the it FT &L - sk iR TJ%T%ET,\JE%HQK ﬂ&ﬂw
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of XFi&E HMEZEEMARFREZITHAE R
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the 5 & BMBE ARNA R 8] sk H (T (7] 138
SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company required to be B (E&ERFEHFNEAEIEHIEXVEL) R MH -
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the  RBIMXD S ERE B R EAER AR -
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL FTERRHEZRAE
SHAREHOLDERS

As at the date of this report, the persons or corporations who had R AR & B H# LA A £ 8E B R A QR
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of P EkHBEIRMD P HEEIRIEEZ 5 LB EIEHIE
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company XV #8552 %37 #F {5 3 J8 [A) AN /A &) 4% 55 ek 50 6%
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or RIR#EH M B E & F336E R EMFEE
which were recorded in the register to be kept under section 336 of R ftHREZESIA B

the SFO were as follows:

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interests Capacity shares interested shareholding

BEEng EB Bt -27) RGEHE HARREIL

Jicheng Investment Limited Long position Beneficial owner 123,140,900 29.85%
A EnBEAA

Mr. Huang Weniji (Note 1) Long position Interest in a controlled 125,030,900 30.31%

corporation and
beneficial owner

EXERE (KD 5o REESEE R ER R

ExnBEEA
Ms. Chen Jieyou (Note 2) Long position Interest of spouse 123,140,900 29.85%
BRERE 2 (FF3E2) HE il B =

Notes: Bt 5 -

1. Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by 1. Jicheng Investment Limited Fi & XX &L £ 2
Mr. Huang Wenji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Wenji is deemed to be BERERER Bt BRIBEFHRAEK -
interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under | 3R ST A AR 1B A Jicheng Investment
the SFO. In addition, Mr. Huang Wenji was granted the options under Limited Fﬁ?—rﬂ%ﬁqﬂ WA fees o N EYE
the share option scheme of the Company on 14 May 2020. EERZZT_EFAATHARERR

BERR pE At BB B AR A o

2. Ms. Chen Jieyou is the spouse of Mr. Huang Wenji and accordingly 2. RRELTAENELEZRGB Bt R
is deemed to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Huang Wenii BESLRBEEN BREEIIEREXEL
has interest under the SFO. EFTFRGO P -
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons or corporation having an
interest or short position in shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, except for those
disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no material connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions between the Group and its connected
persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which are subject to
the reporting, announcement and the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of his/her duties in his/her office. The
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its Directors and officers.
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PERERIERAR AR

B EXEEESN RARS B LA
B E A A £ SUAER A A TR AR
RAAR 5 o A 1R 4B T2 5 01 S XV B 68
2135 M X ANA R T RE R RERBE
% K Y 5 15 ) 5336 48 5 F 17 B B 1 M kg
R SORA -

HAEXZREEBRERS

HE-_T-_—"F#+-"A=+—BIFE KB
AT ERERM T4 EEIN KEE R
HBREAL(TER WA W EETEE
SFEMMBAE TNARR QM &IET IR
ERTHNERBERGMIFERER S -

EERGQNER

BERNRBDESNARRHEETAERAF]
MEBARKARMBRARNFREREBHF
EARBREMAILNERANTHRBEEARE

o

N

B

IR RE 80 175 5

B XX TRE R #ERT 8] — BT E 2 AR R B
R EISN F A AR EBER] AR A BOE
B TEEFAZFHETE-

BTz RERX

REBEABERAA AR R EFMEBHMT
ENARRBESTHEMESABMEFERE
AETREMARELEXRINMEFRA
KA-BR-EX BEMAXESRE X
REAERHUEEERSRBENERFA
RHEE 2RI



NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
confirmation given by Mr. Huang Wenji and Jicheng Investment
Limited, being controlling shareholders (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) of the Company, to ensure their compliance with the
non-competition undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus (the
“Prospectus”) of the Company dated 3 February 2015.

OTHER UNDERTAKINGS BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders have
also undertaken to indemnify the Group against all actions, claims,
demands, proceedings, costs and expenses, losses and liabilities
whatsoever made, suffered or incurred by the Group arising from (i)
the restructuring and reorganisation undergone by the Group on or
before the date on which the global offering becomes unconditional;
or (i) the Group’s non-compliance with the PRC laws, rules and
regulations as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Business —
Non-compliance” of the Prospectus. No provision has been made
for the above during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

There had been no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 January
2015 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible persons for
their past contributions and attracting and retaining, or otherwise
maintaining on-going relationships with, such eligible persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include any proposed, full-time
or part-time employees, executive or officers of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; any directors or proposed director (including
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and any
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. Subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time, the Board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of the approval by the shareholders in general
meeting; and/or

(ii) grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Board.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of shares to
be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of options in excess of 1% limit
shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular by the Company; and
(i) the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later
than ten years from the date of grant of the share options subject
to the provisions for early termination thereof. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company HK1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 21 days
after the offer date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the shares on
the date of the offer for the grant, which must be a business day; (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of
a share.

As as the date of this report, the total number of securities available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 41,255,000 shares,
representing 10% the total number of issued shares of the Company.
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The following table disclosed movements in the Company’s share ~ FRWEEA QA FBIRERAFEE 2 #H)
options during the year:

Adjusted
exercise price Outstanding Granted  Exercised during Lapsed Outstanding
Name or category of participants Date of grant Exercise period (HK$) asat01.01.2022  during the year theyear  during the year as at 31.12.2022
R=B==f
g@E R-B-ZF T=A

AEE —A-A =t-8
SREZRAER BHAH ki 2 (Bx) HATE  ERERE  ERBAE  FREAX i R ATHE

(Note 3)

(ft3+3)

Category: Directors

B &3
Mr. Huang Weniji 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 1,893,000 - (1,890,000) (3,000) -
ENERE “ECEERATIA —Z-ZRARTMAZ

“Z--FRATZR
Mr. Yang Guang 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 1,893,000 - (1,890,000 (3,000) -
BrEE “Z-EFRATMA “E_RRATMAER

“Z--FRA+=A
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 1,893,000 - (1,890,000 (3,000) -
MEERE “ECZERATIA
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 1,893,000 - (1,890,000 (3,000) -
ERERE ZZ-ZFRA+WA —Z-ZRARTMAZ

:?::iﬁﬂ +=H
Mr. Tso Sze Wai 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 1,893,000 - (1,890,000 (3,000) -
EREEE “Z-EFRATMA “2-2RATMAZE

“E--FRA+=A
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 1,893,000 - (1,890,000 (3,000) -

Winnie

FERENT “ZCZFRATIEA “Z-TRATMEAZR

ZZ-ZERATEH
Category: Employees
%h &8
Employees 12 May 2022 12 May 2022 to 11 May 2024 0.462 - 30,288,000 (30,200,000) - 88,000
(] ZR-ZFRATZA ZR-CERATZRE

“Z-MERAT-R
Employees 8 April 2021 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 0.740 18,930,000 - - - 18,930,000
(] —2--£@ANA “RC-EMANNAE

“E-=FfMA+tA
Employees 14 May 2020 14 May 2020 to 13 May 2022 0.464 7,572,000 - (7,560,000) (12,000) -
==} “Z-EFRATMA “Z-ZRATMAR

“E--fRA+=H
Employees 10 April 2019 10 April 2019 to 9 April 2029 0.900 18,750,000 - - - 18,750,000
EE —2-NEMATA —2-NEMATAE

ZZZAFMANE

56,610,000 30,288,000 (49,100,000) (30,000) 37,768,000

Note: P EE

1, During the year ended 31 December 2022, the closing price of the 1. HE—_T - —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE"
Company’s shares immediately before 12 May 2022, the date of ARAARORE @ﬁ%*&ﬁﬁ =%
grant of the share options, was HK$0.440. —ZFR AT ZHAINKTERO.4408 T

2. 30,200,000 options was exercised during the year ended 31 2. HE-_T-_—_F+=A= ‘f’ El IEFE
December 2022 with the exercise price of HK$0.462 and 18,900,000 2 B /830,200,00017 F18,900,00017 & % #
options was exercised during the year ended 31 December 2022 AT BT E 5 Bl /50.4627 7T [20.464
with the exercise price of HK$0.464. The weighted average closing BT - RNREEERERTEAHRFZ
price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the hnige F 54T & A£0.5607% 7T
options were exercised was HK$0.560.

3. The exercise price and the number of share options granted has 3. ERHBRENTEBRHEERAR_F
been adjusted for the Share Consolidation which was effective on ZZEFELANBEBNRNEFELFAE-
6 July 2020.

4. 11,358,000 share options to six directors and 7,572,000 share 4. RZEZ_EFRATHARTFAAEZE
options to employees granted on 14 May 2020 granted were = 21 1,358,000/ ERIERZETEE
immediately vested at the date of grant. 18,750,000 share options 7,572,000 RN E L A HEEH
to employees granted on 10 April 2019 were immediately vested at B-RZT—NFUNA+AETEEZ
the date of grant. 18,750,000 share options to employees granted 18,750,00017 B B% # 1A 3% tH A BA BD 6% 53
on 8 April 2021 were immediately vested at the date of grant. B-RZT-_—FWANAETEEZ
30,288,000 share options to employees granted on 12 May 2022 18,750,00017 B B% # 1A 3% tH A BR BN B 53
were immediately vested at the date of grant. B-RZE__FAA+_ARTEEZ

30,288,000/ i ik # 7 4% i B BAEN I 57 88 -
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director of the Company or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong. During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the MPF scheme
and the retire benefit scheme in the PRC that might be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practice.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 14 to 29.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring Auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Huang Wenji
Chairman and Executive Director

Fujian Province, the PRC, 31 March 2023
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BYZRBENRE

elite
partnhers

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 171,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matter
BARERSER

Allowance for impairment assessment of trade and other receivables and
loan receivable

BEREMEBERRENRERESREFLRE

The Group’s trade and other receivables and loan receivable are
accounted for approximately 40% of the Group’s total assets.
The assessment of impairment of trade and other receivables and
loan receivable under the expected credit loss (‘ECL”) model is
considered to be a matter of most significance as it requires the
application of judgement and use of subjective assumptions by
management.

ESENESREMBKRREUAREBRERG ESEAEEN
0% HRFEBTEEERAAS REATFEBRRE WRERBES
BE ([TEREEBE])EAFTHE S R E A REYIEN R EWRE
R BERRIEEBEE 2 F1H -

Management performed periodic assessment on the recoverability
of the trade and other receivables and loan receivable and the
sufficiency of provision for impairment based on information
including credit profile of different debtors, historical settlement
records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing and amount
of realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going relationships
with the relevant debtors. Management also considered forward
looking information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay
the outstanding balances in order to estimate the ECL for the
impairment assessment.
ERERBTIREHAZEERR BEAERE BRESENRR
REEFRBE2EREZFRRRARSEURERABEEANSEBRE
SER HE 5 K H A M RIA LA K W E 52 BT U E M KO E
BEOZEMHETEHATG - BEENZRUEVERTFPEER
RAFIARE W 2 AR E R A RIEN 2 R EEER -

18 M % BLAT R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANEREEBERELEHEZANX

Our major audit procedures in relation to
impairment assessment of the trade and other
receivables and loan receivable included the
following:

B E 5 R E M EUGRIEARERE R
BETEATHNEFEERRRTEEUATEIE:

° Understood and evaluated of related
internal controls;

TR N 505 A8 B8 A R A% Bl 5 0 ¢

° Tested on a sample basis the ageing of
receivables at year end;

ORI A R MR TR RO B iiG

o Checked on a sample basis the
settlement subsequent to the financial
year end to the receivables; and
AHE S S BE R B B R A R1Z FE UK
FENEERER &

° Assessed the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the
key data inputs on a sample basis to
assess their accuracy and completeness,
and challenging the assumptions,
including both historical and forward-
looking information, used to determine
the expected credit losses.
AERBEEEERE R ENES L
NS AT A A BURNUT A
M RTRE  WERANEEES
EEERNBRR (BREELKATELE
K1) °
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZRBENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chow Ka Li with Practising Certificate number
PO7809.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GneBmakEtEEESEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

78

2022 2021
—Eg-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR T T
Revenue g 8 353,948 306,054
Cost of sales & AR (318,582) (279,154)
Gross profit EF 35,366 26,900
Other income and net gain/(loss) HipWg A R zs (E518)
FEE 8 19,026 (12,003)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Ft1= & &5 18 B FE R
allowances for credit losses, EEE - kR E
net of reversal (9,254) (3,534)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of L% « BB M & EFER
property, plant and equipment FEEE - (5,036)
Impairment loss recognised in HEREEERR
respect of right-of-use assets FEEE - (2,015)
Impairment of intangible assets mIvEERE = (1,453)
Impairment of goodwill AR E - (5,670)
Fair value loss on contingent ERNHAREZ
consideration payables NEEEE - (7,537)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HAX (22,050) (31,133)
Administrative expenses TERAX (43,775) (79,840)
Finance costs BF 75 R AR 10 (3,954) (3,861)
Loss before tax BB ATEE (24,641) (125,182)
Income tax expense FriS#iF = 11 (4,792) (2,547)
Loss for the year attributable to KABEBEAELEFEANER
owners of the Company 12 (29,433) (127,729)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wz
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEHHIBEEER A
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising BREMBRREEZ
on translation of financial statements PE 5 Z= %A 2,172 563
Total comprehensive expense RARHEE AR
for the year attributable to FANEEALEE
owners of the Company (27,261) (127,166)
Loss per share BRERE
Basic (RMB) HEE(ARK) 13 (0.08) cents & (42.76) cents 7>
Diluted (RMB) #E (ARKE) 13 (0.08) cents & (42.76) cents 7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2022 A —E -~ +_-_HA=+—H

2022
— 22—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AERETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment e N R 17 46,308 60,446
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 13,123 24177
Intangible assets mEAE 19 - =
Goodwill GRS 20 - =
Fixed time deposit TEHFR 26 5,000 10,000
Prepayments TEfTRIA 24 6,710 6,710
71,141 101,333
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 21 132,269 127,580
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBDR
profit or loss M REE 22 4,245 5,834
Trade receivables B 5 MW FRIE 23 148,571 118,599
Prepayment and other receivables TR RIE N H A YRR 24 65,598 45,894
Loan receivable U E R 25 10,838 =
Fixed time deposits EHF R 26 19,207 48,714
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHR MRS 26 16,571 2,478
397,299 349,099
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables H I RENFIERENEE 27 59,455 25,481
Accruals, other payables JEStER - A ERFRIB R
and contract liabilities AHEaE 28 6,290 29,635
Bank borrowings IRITEK 29 68,100 77,650
Tax payable FETRLIR 2,468 1,096
136,313 133,862
Net current assets REBEEFE 260,986 215,237
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERARBAE 332,127 316,570
Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIE B (& 30 315 364
Net assets EEFE 331,812 316,206

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
20224 F 3§

79



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2022 A —E -~ +_-_HA=+—H

2022 2021

— ‘%:E —
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBEFIT

Capital and reserves EXRFHE

Share capital fi& 7% 31 10,818 7,833
Reserves ] 320,994 308,373
Total equity EEAE 331,812 316,206

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2023 and are signed
on its behalf by:

HAEMBBRRERESFEN_ZE_=F=H
S+t —BHAETRETE WAL TRERE
=1

Huang Weniji
BENE
Director

EF

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

Share
Share Share  Translation Statutory option Other Merger Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
BRE
BA ROEE ERRE ATHE e HthfiE AHRE KRR ERAE
RMB'000O  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARET T ARETT ARETT ARETT ARE
(note (a)) (note (note (d) ote (g)
(K@) (R ) (fit5E(e))
As at 1 January 2021 W_E-—-%-f—-H 5,802 125,516 2,938 41,268 8,416 275 81,521 160,489 426,225
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (12729 (127,729)
Exchange dffferences arising MRRRAEEEY

on translation of financial ERER

statements - - 563 - - - - - 563
Total comprenensive income/ ER2ARA/ (H%)

(expense) for the year BE - - 563 - - - - (127,729 (127,166)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERETHE - - = 341 = = = (341) =
Contrioution from shareholders R - - - - - 261 - = 261
Issue of new shares BEk 2,031 10,417 - - - - - - 12,448
Grant of share options RHERE - - = = 4,438 = = = 4,438
As at 31 December 2021 and WZEZ-%+ZA

as at 1 January 2022 =+-ARk=E==F

—-A-H 7,833 135,933 3,501 41,609 12,854 536 81,521 2,19 316,206
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (29,433) (29,433)
Exchange differences arising BB RRAEELL

on translation of financial ERER

statements - - 2172 - - - - - 2112
Total comprehensive income FRZERA/ (Bx)

(expense) for the year fak) - - 2172 - - - - (29,433) (27,261)
Transfer to statutory reserve EREERE - - - 803 - - - (803) -
Contrioution from shareholders BRTE - - - - - 34 - - 3%
Issue of new shares BIOHR 1,649 17,444 - - - - - - 19,003
Grant of share options R BRE - - - - 4419 - - - 4419
Lapse of share options BRERN - - - - @) - - 3 -
Exercise of share options riEmE 12336 2,017 - - (6,032) - - - 19,321
Reversal of statutory reserve HE-BHBARNE

appropriation upon disposal of BEETRERR

a subsidiary - - - (19,528) - - - 19,528 -
As at 31 December 2022 e et

+=A=+-AH 10,818 171,394 5,673 22,884 11,238 570 81,521 2,114 331,812
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERSER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

Notes:

(@)

CHINA
SHETES

Share premium represents the excess of consideration received for
issue of shares over the corresponding par value of the issued shares.
The application of the share premium account is governed by the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands.

Translation reserves refer to exchange differences arising for translating
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.

The statutory reserve fund is non-distributable and the transfer to this
reserve is determined by the board of directors in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). This reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses
and increase capital upon approval from the relevant government
authorities.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for each period
is determined by spreading the fair value of the share options over the
relevant vesting period (if any) and is recognised in other operating
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired as a result
of the reorganisation as fully explained in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” in the section headed “History and Corporate
Structure” of the prospectus of the Company dated 3 February 2015
and the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+ - =+—HIFE

2022 2021
—Z=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH BHERE
Loss before tax PR AT E 18 (24,641) (125,182)
Adjustments for: THE
Amortisation of intangible assets Em A EE - 197
Finance costs B 75 A AR 3,954 3,861
Bank interest income RITHBWA (4,797) (766)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- BB REEITE
equipment 4,613 5,409
Loan interest income B BUA @17) =
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 731 936
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MIEEFBERERR
allowance of credit loss model, WAEEE - kR B E
net of reversal 9,254 3,634
Loss/(gain) on financial assets at fair value RATEFABEENES R
through profit or loss BEZER/ (M) 4,863 (1,196)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYWE - HE X
plant and equipment Bl Ei] 327 835
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMRBRAR 2 RE (5,056) =
Fair value change of ERSAREZ
contingent consideration payables N EE - 7,537
Equity-settled share-based AR AEE ARG &
payment expenses HEp 25X 4,419 4,438
Impairment loss recognised in respect MY BB MR TR
of property, plant and equipment < REEE - 5,036
Impairment loss recognised in MERAREERRL
respect of right-of-use assets RIEEE = 2,015
Impairment loss recognised in respect MELEERRLZ
of intangible assets BIEEE = 1,458
Impairment loss recognised in respect HEERARZREBE
of goodwill - 5,670
Operating cash flows before BEESEFA
movements in working capital ZIREREGRE (6,750) (86,223)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & (m), md (8,119) 132,165
Increase in trade receivables B 5 eI R IEE N (51,267) (71,119
Increase in prepayment and other T8 AT 5RI8 Fo H Ath fE IR
receivables N (38,280) (2,008)
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BEATFEGFAER
through profit or loss B & B & R (2,837) (4,742)
Increase/(decrease) in trade B 5 M RIE R ER B
and bills payables #m CRd) 37,161 (29,874)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, JEEtE R - HAbER B R
other payables and contract liabilities ama/dEEm Crd) 29,297 (398)
Cash used in operations rEFEFARS (40,795) (62,199)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EAED (4,404) (1,574)
Net cash used in operating activities REEEAREFRE (45,199) (63,773)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

2022
—E-F

RMB’000
AR®T

2021
T
RMB’000
AR®T T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEFHZRERE
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  WEEME - E M & (3,010) (964)
Placement of fixed time deposits 7 HUE HifF K (38,069) (16,052)
Withdrawal of fixed time deposits REUE BiE R 72,576 13,979
Bank interest received BYWER1TFI B 4,797 766
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BWE&

plant and equipment B2 FT1SFUR 26 28
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary HEKB AR ZRERAFE 29,843 =
Payment of contingent consideration payable 3z < JE{~ sl A K (B (21,528) =
Advance to loan receivable B ERER (12,443) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEFE (FFA)

investing activities REFHE 32,192 (2,243)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEETHZRERE

Proceeds from issues of shares BITRRAD FTIS R IE 19,093 12,448

Proceeds from exercising of share options 1T{E I A P S IR 19,321 =

Proceeds from new bank borrowings HiERITIE AT B KB 71,900 92,300

Repayment of bank borrowings BEEBITER (81,450) (91,800)

Interest paid BEATHLE (3,954) (3,861)

Contribution from shareholders ERFE 34 261
Net cash generated from financing activities RMEEEMBHESTE 24,944 9,348
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRRESEEY

cash equivalents ' CRd) B 11,937 (56,668)
Cash and cash equivalents at BEHANZEER

the beginning of the reporting period REeEZEEY 2,478 58,319
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes IEERSETE 2,156 827
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of BEHRZEER

the reporting period ReZEEY
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 16,571 2,478
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
12 June 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company
is Jicheng Investment Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) with limited liabilities and is
ultimately controlled by Mr. Huang Weniji (‘Mr. Huang”).

The address of the registered office is Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. The address of the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is Room 904, Loon Kee Building,
275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is
engaged in investment holding while the principal subsidiaries
are principally engaged in manufacture and sales of umbrellas
and the relevant products.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) since the principal subsidiaries are
operating in RMB environment and the functional currency of
these subsidiaries is RMB.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(A) AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

— B E R
ARARZE—NFEANA+ZHREHA
ERESNFETFRERS MK L AE
BREBERARBERNREBHERS
FIBR AR (B £ HREKE
fi% A &) A& Jicheng Investment Limited * 3%
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(TERAE]) B IRIEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2. FEAKEIEE M B R & % 8|

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (TN BEREER]) (&)
(continueq)
(A) AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY A) REFEBREHERZREITE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (continued) BYEREER (&)
The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the RAFEERE SRS ER
current year had no material impact on the Group’s ZETHAEERAFERBAE
financial positions and performance for the current and FEMNBMBRARKRER R X%
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these EREVBRERTAEAFEEL &
consolidated financial statements. BERATE-
(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B) EEMENE REMMNHTRE
YET EFFECTIVE CHE LR e
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBRAREFSHERTINEHEM
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are BHARERZFTRLETES
not yet effective: B s mE AR -
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
EUTHEHYH 2%
BBNEREHBER
HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
and February 2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17))
BEBMEMEEREI7TH (REES REE L —T-=ZF%—fF—H

R EEBEI7THEN T T F

TARZE_—F A ZBEFIAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an A date to be
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture determined

BAMBRELENEIR KBS S BREERHBENRHIAELEZMEN BEfFE

RN EE285% (1&FTA) BEHEITE
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BB WEER F165% (EFIA) EREAOZZTHEERE —ET-_mME—-—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2024

Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BB ERE1H (BFTAR) HEBES RRBIERB B ERE —E-_MFE—-—A—H
o9 (Z T T F) ZHEBIERT
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
BEGFHEREE (BFTAR) MEsRmzERDEE —E-_MFE-A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2024
Practice Statement 2
EAGHEAFIRREEVBMELD SHBRKE —T-=%—fA—H
BEBREFE25% (BFIA)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
LRI ACEHEN) BN ESR —E-=F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and 1 January 2023
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
BB G ERE125 (BFTA) HE-QRHGEANEERBEREH@N —T-=F—H—H
R IE

86 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PERERIERAR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2. EAKEITIEBHMKEREEA
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (IEBHMBEHREER]) (#)
(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B) EEMEERERNOIFTRE
YET EFFECTIVE (continued) BRI ERMBEREER (&)
Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs Br NIl 2 $TE] RASHE R B A
mentioned below, the directors anticipate that the B mEERIN EETEFERAM
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs BEHAMIE REEFT BB M B
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial HEARAER KRR I EHEE
statements in the foreseeable future. B REREETMNERATLE-

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or (a) BEHBHREELRZEI0HR
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its BEBEER E28% (53T
Associate or Joint Venture X)) REEZHBEBE LA

BEEPECHNEEHE
gEE
The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated BB WS R B 1058 47
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in M BmE LB BT ER
Associates and Joint Ventures deal with situations FosmHEBENT REED
where there is a sale or contribution of assets ¥EBE B REBREESR
between an investor and its associate or joint =8NS = X
venture. Specifically, the amendments state that EEHEXTEMNBR A
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control BBME  ZE8EE0 - HEE
of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in ERAHEELEIRFGR
a transaction with an associate or a joint venture KA EZE TEE%
that is accounted for using the equity method, 2 M B Ak EIEFIRET
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only EEMBR EETHEBR
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests BEEZBELNRREED
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains E¥hRE=EEN SES
and losses resulting from the remeasurement of NAElZ BRPER - R &
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that EMA AT B A7 (B A
has become an associate or a joint venture that ERNRAEEDE KAR
is accounted for using the equity method) to fair HAEAR) P REBNIEE#
value are recognised in the former parent's profit or TEFTEMEELEZEBRIN
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors' NEEFE - ETETHEBER
interests in the new associate or joint venture. BEEEFBEARHEED
EPHEENERRN 4
RIS AR B R -
The application of the amendments is not expected TEHEAZEETIARATEY
to have significant impact on the financial position REBMF BRI RKEE
and performance of the Group. RERFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2. FEAKEIEE M B R & % 8|

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (IERAMBHREER]) (&)
(continued)
(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B) EEMERKRERVHFITIRE
YET EFFECTIVE (continued) BB RBMBERERER (&)
(b) Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as (b)) BEEERZEIFR (KT
Current or Non-current and related amendments to K)EEES BRE T H T
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) EREEBREFE (—FZ
EE)ZHEEET
The amendments provide clarification and ZEBR A MR EESR
additional guidance on the assessment of right to BEEE®mEAHEEL+=
defer settlement for at least twelve months from 8 AR ERRME T BB
reporting date for classification of liabilities as TEE UBEBESEAR
current or non-current, which: BaENFERDEE E:
- specify that the classification of liabilities - EHABBEESBERR
as current or non-current should be based BEENFERDAE
on rights that are in existence at the end EERBRERRE T
of the reporting period. Specifically, the R AEMmE
amendments clarify that: ZEERIRE
()  the classification should not be () DEIEZIE
affected by management intentions or BEEEEXBE
expectations to settle the liability within F128 A NBE
12 months; and BEHEHNTE: &
(i) if the right is conditional on the (i) AR EERILAE SF
compliance with covenants, the right RAERGY W
exists if the conditions are met at the RE®REHRW
end of the reporting period, even if the &M RIGZ
lender does not test compliance until a AMEE BIEE
later date; and RAHEEB®A

ARARE: &

- clarify that if a liability has terms that could, —  BBENREEZIGIHE
at the option of the counterparty, result in FALBERSGHFS
its settlement by the transfer of the entity's RIERAEREER
own equity instruments, these terms do not R TARER:
affect its classification as current or non- AlEEZERKERS
current only if the entity recognises the option HEEERREAR
separately as an equity instrument applying BAGFLEREI2R
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. [T HE: 28] 2 #

Sz 4 A A Eon
= LAER  ZERRT

& Bs 488 AN 2 2
"B EESBEARM

= 7~

BREIFRDEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

(b)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (continued)

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS
1 to align the corresponding wordings with no
change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as
at 31 December 2022, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group's liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in any entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting
policy information may be material because of the
nature of the related transactions, other events
or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity choose to
disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

e BRRHE

T+ _-_A=+t—H8IFE

2. EREEITEREMBREER
(IEBMBHREEA]) (&)

(B) BB 1 5 MY 3 5T R4S
BT E BB B EER (&)

(b)

(c)

FEBHEAEISR (B
K EBRDAH T A
FEREERE(—EE
) Z BT ()

BN BB G EERIE
BB HEBRIBEH
1T T 3T - AR AR AR 0 1
ARB—HARRTE-

REAEBER _T_-—
T-A=T—HZAREESR
B HAZEETATEE
BAKEZABEEHROE-

BEEBETEREIRREE
MEBEBEEAEHHEF2
B ETE) Bt BRKE
ER G EREIRZER
U TEXEFTERERER] K
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B E st HERERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

(c)

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group but may affect the
disclosures of the Group’s significant accounting
policies. The impacts of application, if any, will
be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates
as “monetary amounts in financial statement that
are subject to measurement uncertainty”. An
accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured
at monetary amounts that cannot be observed
directly and must instead be estimated. In such a
case, an entity develops an accounting estimate
to achieve the objective set out by the accounting
policy. Developing accounting estimates involves
the use of judgements or assumptions based on
the latest available, reliable information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2. FEHKEIEE BB R & % 8|

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (BB BHREEA]) (#)
(continued)
(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B) EEMERKRERNFITIRE
YET EFFECTIVE (continued) BB BB RERED (&)
(d) Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting (d ZTEE:ERESHE (55T
Estimates (continued) X)EsEapEZ (£2)
In addition, the concept of changes in accounting AN B TR FE8HAY
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional SEEETE SO S T LR
clarifications. B W EE—FEE-
The application of the amendments is not ERAZIETATERITEH AR
expected to have significant impact on the Group’s SENGEMBRRELEE
consolidated financial statements. 2

(e) Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related () ZEEBEZIERF12% (55T
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single K)EE-—XGELWEE
Transaction REEBEHEZNSE
The amendments narrow the scope of the FACHENES N
recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities E125% [FT1S T 15Kk 24
and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 BHRIREHIBEEERELER
of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer HEENWRRREEHE F
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, HTABERRVTERRFE
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary ERERERT R AR E
differences. BIEEBENR S -
As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial AN ER A BT TR 3R MY RE4FR
statements, for leasing transactions in which the WEE B IEE M AN A
tax deductions are attributes to the lease liabilities, EaEMNHEERSME &
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the SEHEEREERAEER
relevant assets and liabilities as a whole. Temporary FEREA G ERIE125 M
differences relating to relevant assets and liabilities RE-HABEEREBERESR
are assessed on a net basis. TR E IR FRAE

i o

Upon the application of the amendments, the RERZIER AE NEE
Group will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the BT REEEREESR
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be BEEBMFE N R ER
available against which the deductible temporary HEREEEEREERIE
difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability &7 (LA R] BE B B R B a7
for all deductible and taxable temporary difference BRI R ESE
associated with the right-of-use assets and the AR RELEHRIEEE-

lease liabilities.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF 3.

PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rule”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

ARBARKAHBBEZR
B E

BREH

FAEMBHRRNIEREESAMASMHE
iz BB BHRELRE LI &3
EVBHRREEBTEBMEXIMARA
A (TR Al EmARA ([ LR
A1) REBRBRGINHEREMRE
) 8 R I R

REMBBRERZEREE

BIXHESBRARE KEMK
BREREBEELAAELERE HERE
BERRRAFEFEZ SR T ARSI -

FE 2 AN — MR DA IR IR ER & W) B BR 7 P 4
TREZRAFHEREE-

RFHER/EMH2EE ZHRFAERR
BFRXHHE-—REEMBREREZE—
HEEMXNZER (TH%4ERES
AEEBRIRA S —AETEMGE) ©
EfEARBEERABZAFER K
SEZEZEELRBEZRHME (HHE
SHREABTZEELRERTERZ
BERBEEBEZERE) RAERS
HEZEHFEVBHREAREBNMETE
ZRFEDRIEEEEE EBREE
P RS 257 [ AR RER 2
RIBERAZEDNRAR S RRELE
B mEERE165IRCEERS
AREBAFERUELEAFELZE
(MBEBEFERNFESR [FE]| 2 &
BIFERE L G ERIFE365 [EER
Bl ZEREE)RIN-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with current year presentation.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S INTERESTS IN EXISTING
SUBSIDIARIES

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSS).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the property,
plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.

Construction in progress for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING
(continueq)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

LEASES

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 or modified or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of premises that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continueq)
LEASES (continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset
belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group
of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

TESTBEREE (#)

NE BEERREBE ERAEEER
BREE (BEKRIN REE)

A] W Bl & B8 2 4R A SRR S B RN (R
MR EEREEMETHNRSE AT
e R EER - JHER A B ARG 3R R A5 fh
AAARKREREMBEZERE  M&KR
RN XRMRBITHEHEERREEE
REE(IRSELFEM) (EARER
EREMEFIREHE) FERR 2 -

At EE (KRS ELEM) AT
@I NEREE MEE (LR
ELEM) REERDERAKRESHE-
RAREREE-—BEESEERSES
BUMNOEEER—MOLEEEMS -
AEEeK—HACELEMNREE
(BEIEEZRcELEMARNN D
XEEI WX EENKRAME)H
ZARCELEUMAINESE LR
RO R EREE  BERBESE LK
P E AR E R AR (@ B) W AR E
B EERUABSHEEZRAEREER
hDEEZENRZREELEMA
R EMEE - B ERRREE TR D
EERAFEBRLEKRAN (MAFE)
EREE(MAE) BT =FHIR
BE-BANEEEENREBESR
ARt PIo R EREMNRAZRTELE
152 48 75! B L fth 2 E - R 1B /&5 18 B B 0 4B
o R

fWREBENERELD ZEE (LR
CELBEUNRSELEMAR)HRK
EEMENEELERT AR AT S
BREEMOEEAETSBBEE (X
ReELBEUXReELEMHAR)R
BEFENEERBESREEETEN
FREE - B DR EE IR N 1R s i

7
s ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022F F 1]

99



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHHEME (&)

(continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve. Such exchange differences
accumulated in the translation reserve are not reclassified to
profit or loss subsequently.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
OCCuUrs.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHHEME (&)

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHHEME (&)

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets (including trade receivables, other
receivables, amount due from ultimate holding company, loan
receivable, fixed time deposits and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
end of the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(it

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to mest
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of financial assets is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
accrued expenses, other payables and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@)

cash, which comprises of cash on hand demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customers. The normal
credit term is up to 30 =150 days upon delivery.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHHEME (&)

(continued)

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANT

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHHEME (&)

(continued)
TAXATION (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate
trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred are vested in accordance with the
scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits schemes operated by the government
of the PRC is to make the specified contributions under the
schemes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TES:HFEBME (&)

(continued)
SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHHEME (&)

(continued)
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liabilities is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation,
the part of the obligation that is expected to be met by
other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it is not
recognized in the consolidated financial statement.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of
future economic benefits will be required for an item previously
dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in
the consolidated financial statements in the reporting period in
which the change in probability occurs except in the extremely
rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

RELATED PARTY

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

RELATED PARTY (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(i)

)

(V)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables and loan
receivable

Trade and other receivables and loan receivable are assessed
for ECL. In addition, the Group uses provision matrix to
calculate ECL for the trade receivables. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables,
other receivables and loan receivable are disclosed in note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bills payables and bank borrowings, net of bank
balances and cash, and equity attributable to the owner of the
Company, which comprises issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the issue of new debts or
the redemption of the existing debts.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital
requirements.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

EXERERE

AEEEBEERANBERAEENE R
ARNERE WEREBLLEKRMERE
HRABEREREANDER NEEH 2 K8
REEEBEFERTIE

AEENEARBEEREFRE (21
ENRERIBITER)  HRRITER
RBREARKRAREEARERED (2
BEBRITRARER)

EXTHRSEARBE -ERZMETH
—H EEEREAKNARZSHRENR
MARERR ARERRBEES ZHER
ERBEBXMNERE BITHMBRRETH
EHXBOREGEE FTHEEREAR

REE B RETERSN AN E AR
E

X
St

REHARMEBEERBLRMNT:

2022 2021
—E-F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARET T

Total debts (note) BB (M) 101,517 99,831
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BReRBEEEY (16,571) (2,478)
Net debt B /F5 84,946 97,353
Total equity R iaRE 331,812 316,206
Net debt to equity ratio FaERERILE 26% 31%
Total debts to equity ratio weE BRI E 31% 32%

Note: Total debts comprise bills payables and bank borrowings
as detailed in notes 27 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)

(B)

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

7.

TRTH
(A)

SRTEWNER

2022 2021
—_ 22—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBET T
Financial assets ERMEE
At amortised cost S A A 229,964 184,403
At fair value through profit or loss BATER AEE 4,245 5,834
Financial liabilities tEEE
At amortised cost biog: R0 N 130,681 131,356
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND B) HH¥EREEEEZERBEE

POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, loan receivable, amount
due from ultimate holding company, fixed time deposits,
bank balances and cash, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, trade and bills payables, accrued
expenses, other payables and bank borrowings. Details
of the financial instruments for the Group are disclosed in
respective notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, other price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 1.

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases
denominated in United States dollar (‘USD”), Japanese
Yen (“JPY”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”), which are
different from the functional currencies of the group
entities carrying out the transactions.

Also, certain trade receivables and bank balances and
cash are denominated in USD, JPY and HKD which
are currencies other than the functional currency of
the relevant group entities. The carrying amounts of
the foreign currency denominated monetary assets

ERITR (&)

B) HEEMEEBEZEREE (&)
5 m
B

AEBEANUEXT([ET]) B
(MBxhHRET(ETDFEZ
SNEEE ZEREETRANAEHE
ERETRH 2L, -

S BT B B R IR  RITH
R IBEAEKT BT BT
B -Ex BB TEFABE
EERIEES, AEENES
HMARMINEABEZEREERE

and monetary liabilities of the Group at the end of the BaBEsRABNAT:
reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =K
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F —E-C —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AR%®Tr ARETT
UsD =TT 130,299 08,746 - -
JPY Hit 12,401 6,292 - -
HKD BT 9,825 16,495 - =

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the directors continuously
monitor the related foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continueq)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of USD,
JPY and HKD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% for all periods increase or decrease in USD, JPY
and HKD against the functional currency. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax loss where USD, JPY and HKD
strengthen 5% against the functional currency. For a 5%
weakens of USD, JPY and HKD against the functional
currency, there would be an equal or opposite impact on
the profit and other equity and the balances below would
be negative.

Impact on loss for the year

usD XTT
JPY BT
HKD BT

7.

EWMIA &)

BEEREEZERERBE (£)

s mEE (&)

EEmEE (&)

BREDW
AEBTXEmMEXT BTRET
SN [ B -

TRESIRFABRAEEY L
T BT RATL I S AR
7 1B5% 2 BB F15 5% T AR
AFRBALEEEAE 2K
EEBTAZ WRELE BRE
EREUNEERSRTLED
2 A o BURE AT R IE AN
HEZMAZHEBIER BRE
045 55K A SIS B 6% 2 8 3
BIEN - T52 EMERER A
TE K T 5, U B 05 FHE5% % -
b BiA BRI 0 e 2T BT R
7T 340 8 55 5 B2 (6% B - 46 i
FRAMERESHARR LY
2 A TREBIEAE N

HENBENTE

2022 2021

—=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
4,886 3,703
465 236
368 619
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL. For
equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in the Stock
Exchange, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group has appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 1, If the prices of
the respective equity instruments had been 5% (2021:
5%) higher/lower, the pre-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2022 would decrease/increase approximately
by RMB212,000 (2021: RMB292,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed time deposits and fixed rate bank borrowings
(see notes 26 and 29 for details respectively). The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank balances (see note 26 for details of
these balances). The exposure to the interest rate risk for
variable rate bank balances is insignificant as the bank
balances have a short maturity period.
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e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
relating in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
other receivables, loan receivable, amount due from
ultimate holding company, fixed time deposits and bank
balances. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk,
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
arising from the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group deposited fixed time deposits and bank
balances with approved and reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may cause
the Group’s right with respect to fixed time deposits
and bank balances held to be delayed or limited. The
directors monitor the credit rating of these banks on an
ongoing basis, and consider that the Group’s exposure
to credit risk as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021 were minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueqd)

For other receivables, loan receivable and amount due
from ultimate holding company, the directors make
periodic assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables, loan receivable and amount due from
ultimate holding company, based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The directors believe
that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding balances of other receivables,
loan receivable and amount due from ultimate holding
company.

Trade receivables of the Group consist of a large number
of customers and spread across geographical areas.

The Group’s policy to manage credit risk is to deal only
with credit worthy counterparties. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has formulated
a credit policy and, delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
take.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade receivables based on
provision matrix. The trade receivables are grouped
under a provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for
its customers because these customers consist of a large
number of customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired).

For other receivables, loan receivable and amount due
from ultimate holding company, the ECL had been
provided under 12m ECL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. &®IH#)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND B) MEXEBREEEERBE(£)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERBERBEE (&)
As at 31 December 2022 R=BZZHF+=ZA=+—H

Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
FEHEEE RE#E EEEE

% RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR®T T AR®T

Not yet due i) 7 185 5 1.99 59,786 1,188
1-90 days past due #HI1 Z= 0K 2.09 67,823 1,416
91-180 days past due #HAO1-180K 3.08 24,315 749
151,924 3,353
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—4F+=ZA=+—H

Expected  Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance

BEHIE R X REAAE EiERE

% RMB’000 RMB’000
AAt ARETT ARETTT

Not yet due i) 7K 781 £ 1.70 107,220 1,823
1-90 days past due # Bf1 290K 1.75 13,150 230
91-180 days past due #1 #891-180K 2.50 289 7

120,659 2,060
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # = —

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The expected loss rate are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group has provided impairment loss of approximately
RMB1,707,000 (2021: RMB2,060,000) for trade
receivables, based on the provision matrix.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

e BRRHE

E-—Ft-A=t—ALEE

7. E®MIA#E)

(B)

BEEREEZEERBE (£)

=EmBR R EFE (E)
i‘EHHJEﬂEﬁE%EMﬁ‘%AE’JEBE
BREOXRAHFEDRREMG
B UHHAEEEN (BRLE
BERARIE N B RER) 178
E-BIHETE R 0 E AR
AR EEFANBEER-

HE-_Z-_—_F#+=-A=+—H
IEFE AEBENBEEEGE
SERF BT IRBEBERED
AR#E1,707,000T (T = —4&F:
AR #2,060,0007T) °

TREIIRGIOELE 5 EIK
HREANZHBRREEERES-

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-

impaired)

ZHEHE

EEE

(EEERME)

RMB’'000

ARBEFIT

As at 1 January 2021 R-ZZFE-_—%—HA—H 105

Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEERREEE 2,060

Impairment loss reversed VEREY gk E (109)
As at 31 December 2021 and as at 1 January 2022 R-_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—HK

—T-_—_#F—H—H 2,060

Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEERREEE 1,707

Disposal of a subsidiary LEMB AR (414)

As at 31 December 2022 R=-B-=—f+=-A=+—H 3,353
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

7. &®IH#)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

For other receivables, the ECL has been provided
under 12m ECL assessment. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group has provided impairment
loss of approximately RMB5,123,000 for trade
receivables (2021: approximately RMB1,579,000). The
following table shows the movement in 12m ECL that
has been recognised for other receivable under general
approach:

As at 1 January 2021

(B)

BEEREEZERERBE (£)

=& & f R B E 771 (4E)
REMEWRREMNS  BHEEE
BERE12E A FEHEERSBT
A REE - BE-_T-_—F+=
B=+—RHLFE AE£BHRES
FEW R IEFT RBEEBEBEEOA
R#5,123,000L (Z T = —F: 4
AR #1,579,0007T) ° F&RE TR
— R ABEHE b FE B FE R A
+-EARBEHEEEENEE:

12m ECL
t=EAREMY

FEEBR
RMB’000
AR®EFT

R-ZE-—F—H—H =

Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEERBAEEE 1,579
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H 1,579
Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEERREEE 5,123
As at 31 December 2022 R=B=-=ZH+=-A=+—H 6,702

The Group categories trade or other receivables for
credit-impaired when a customer or debtor breaches
the contract, such as a default or past due event. Where
trade or other receivables have been written off, the
Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 35%
(2021: 50%) and 80% (2021: 84%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively within the
manufacturing and sales of umbrellas and the relevant
products segment. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+ - =+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Except for the above described, the Group does not
have any other significant concentrations of credit risk.
The exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group calculates the ECL of loan receivable using
three main components: a probability of default (“PD”),
a loss given default (‘LGD”) and the exposure at default
(“EAD”). The 12m ECL is calculated by multiplying the
12m PD, LGD and EAD. The 12m PDs represent the
probability of default occurring over the next 12 months
and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively.
The EAD represents the expected balance at default,
taking into account the repayment of principal and
interest from the balance sheet date to the default event
together with any expected drawdowns of committed
facilities. The LGD represents expected losses on the
EAD given the event of default, taking into account,
among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral
value at the time it is expected to be realised and the
time value of money.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group has provided impairment loss of approximately
RMB2,424,000 for loan receivable.

An analysis of changes in the gross amount and
impairment allowances of loan receivable as at 31

December 2022 is as follow:

As at 31 December 2022

Loan receivable
Impairment loss recognised for the year

7. &®MIH#)

(B)

&Y & R
F A FERREE 18

BEEREEZEERBE (£)

=EmBR R EFE (E)

BRUAEFTAE SN RE B EHE b
EXEPEERR ZFEERR

BRER TR

AEBER =X EZHKE D
BREEFRNEMEERE  2Y
BME(TROBME]) BHBXRE
(MEHBEARE]) EYRREKA
(TR A]) - 1218 A &5
EEBRREREAZNHRE 2
AR R X B W E B O B3R AR
AE-12EARAOBEETASD
B R K1218 A Rt T 21 H1 B 3%
AR AN - B D AR O 18
BHENGS KEREGEBIE
EREOFEHBLEHRNAE BF)
BER EREAEMREEEA
AR ER - BNBRERED
EMBAEREQRR KA NTES
BR UK R (AP EE) A
SHEREERREENERIBERN
ERREENEEEER-

Hz—_f2-_—_F#+=-_A=+—H
IEFE AEETERE TR
BEBEENARE2,424,0007T °
ROZB-—_F+-A=+—H'§
FAEWERBERBERENE
Elbag i IMNS

R-®==—#+-A=+-A

Stage 1
F—MER

RMB’000
ARBTT

13,262
(2,424)

10,838
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

EWIR (&)
B) HEEMEEBEZEREE (&)

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 1.

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continuead)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in 12m ECL
that has been recognised for loan receivable under
general approach.

EEERRREEFE ()
TREINER— BRI EREEEK
ERN12EAEREEERNE
&

12m ECL
+T=EAEH
FEBE
RMB’000
AR T T
As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and RZTE_—F—H—H"
1 January 2022 T —F+ZA=t+—HBK
—E__%—H—H -
Impairment loss recognised for the year FANEHRREEE 2,424
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZB__F+-_HA=+—H 2,424

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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7.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

FF -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

—H+-A=+—HILFE

7. €®MIA#)
HREBEEEERKE (&)

(B)

HEELEE (&)
As at 31 December 2022

R=B-Z-F+=-A=+-8
Weighted On demand Total
average or within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years cash flows amount
nE  RERIR AFREE
FHF % 1R 2255 R MERH REE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTR ARETR AR%TxR
Non-derivative financial FTESRER
liabilities
Trade and bills payables & 5B FUIE R N/A
ENRE TEA 50,455 - 50,455 59,455
Accruals expense and B ERREM N/A
other payables B A 3,126 - 3,126 3,126
Bank borrowings RITEK 3.73% 68,997 - 68,997 68,100
Total w@at 131,578 - 131,578 130,681

As at 31 December 2021
RZFZ—F+-A=t+—H

Weighted ~ On demand Total
average or within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years cash flows amount
M RERIR ARRE
FR|E 15/ 2E5FR mE A RHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:T
Non-derivative financial FTESRAR
liabilities
Trade and bills payables & ZERNFIER N/A
ENRE N 25,481 - 25,481 25,481
Accruals expense and A BAREM N/A
other payables R0 TEA 28,225 - 28,225 28,225
Bank borrowings BITER 4.48% 80,061 = 80,061 77,650
Total @t 133,767 - 133,767 131,356
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(€)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the directors at the
end of each reporting period to explain the cause of
fluctuations in fair value of the asset.

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date;

o Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are input for which market
data are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+ - =+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Fair value on on a recurring basis
Financial assets of FVTPL

— Equity securities listed

SRMIA#)
EMITEANAFEE)

Level 1
E—R

RMB’000
AR®T R

R-EBE-_—F+=-A=+—H
BEEEENBH N FE
BEAFEFABENEMEE
— R LR AR S

in the Stock Exchange 4,245
As at 31 December 2021 R_TE-_—F+-_A=+—H
Fair value on on a recurring basis BAREEEF B A FE
Financial assets of FVTPL BAVEFABRNSREE
— Equity securities listed —REE R AT E TR AR B 5
in the Stock Exchange 5,834

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the date of
the events or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or
transfers into or out of level 3.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

AR B 2 BUR 3 TR B
ZEHHBREHHRZ BER
R A FEERSREEE-

BE_Z-_—_FRk=-F=—%F
+-—A=+—BIFE F—HHE
FoH o EWEEE . I mEEA
HEHE =R

WHERFETSTENEHEER
BEHRFE
ESARNEAMHRA T HER
MERMEERERABMNRKREE
HENFEREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8.

W 3 B H A A R W 58

() REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (1

Sales of umbrellas and HEMRRREBEE®R

the relevant products

EFAN WS

2022
—E-F

2021
T
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
AR® TR

353,948

2022
—=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
Timing of revenue recognition R ENEE
A point in time AR P B 353,948 306,054
Transaction allocated to the remaining performance PEHEHEEFENNF BN ZE
obligation for contracts with customers BHEKE

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contract for
umbrella and the relevant products such that the Group
does not disclose information about revenue that the
Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contract for sales of
umbrella and the relevant products that had an original
expected duration of one year or less.

AEBEEAEERS R HEREEM®H
EANTRERBEEV B RS ER
F1RE121RP A ITREE
A AEBE W EREAREAEE
MmERBEBRHARS —FHIATH
R RABEMEEAR PR
B B 40 3% 755 B A 4 W ER A MK 2 0

() OTHER INCOME AND NET GAIN/(LOSS) ) HttWARKE (@) F
]

2022 2021

—E_—F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Bank interest income IRITH B UA 4,797 766

Loan interest income B B A a7 =

Government grants (note) BB (M) 2,219 2,638
(Loss)/gain on financial assets BATEEGAEEN

at fair value through profit or loss CRMEEZ (BE) K& (4,863) 1,196

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEH B ARz s 5,056 =

Exchange gain, net PE 5 U & 5 58 10,870 (2,271)
Written off on inventories HKE BT B M

due to flooding - (14,441)

Others H At 530 109

19,026 (12,003)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+ - =+—HIFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
(I) OTHER INCOME AND NET (LOSS)/GAIN (continueq)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, government grants
of approximately RMB2,219,000 (2021: RMB2,638,000) were
received, where the Group had fulfilled the relevant criteria,
in respect of certain research and development projects
and employment support scheme. These were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these government grants.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment, which
is the manufacture and sales of umbrellas and the relevant
products. Operating segment is reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the board
of directors, being the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM”"). The CODM is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, no
other discrete financial information is provided other than the
Group’s results and financial position as a whole. Accordingly,
only entity-wide disclosures, products information, major
customers and geographic information are presented.

PRODUCT INFORMATION

The Group has been engaged in manufacturing and sales of
POE umbrella, nylon umbrella and umbrella parts. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue by product category is as follows:

W Rk E MW ARKE (&)

m HetmAR(EE) WHEF
B (&)

GEE

HE-_ZT-_-_F+-RA=+—81
FE BRI ZBEFA@EBORARE
2,219,000t (ZTE=Z—F: AR
2,638,0005T) - HA - AEEBHFES
THHEIEE Rt EM 2 BB S
1% 4 B8 2% S T 4 BY B B 0 R IEAK K
e AEIE -

AREBKEE—DH BRENHEER
ERERER - KEDBRERHET
Exe(X22ERRE ([XELE
REE) ZABBE B2 E2H
TRLEBRREAADRERLFHE
ENERBR-RAKRENBEXERY
BARIN - BRI L E b D BB LAY B
BER-At E27 TEEEBOH
BEMBER TEEPRMEER-

Em&EH
AEEERERHEPOERE JERE

MRRHRTHE AR RERES)
BIH 2R HITMT

2022 2021
—E-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT ARBTT

POE umbrella POE FE %2 83,307 61,229

Nylon umbrella IEESES 72,840 121,909

Umbrella parts MREZEMH 197,801 122,916

353,948 306,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s operation is located in the PRC, accordingly,
no geographical information about the Group’s non-current
assets has been presented. An analysis of the Group’s revenue
from external customers based on the location of operation
presented by geographical location is detailed below:

DEER (&)

it E &R

AEE 2 EEMMNF R FE it W82 7
ERAEBRIERBEENRER 1%
e (RMIBM B2 HAEE
KENSBEP 2 WS EE 2 oW sFat an

T

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tx ARET T
Japan SN 92,633 90,295
PRC (country of domicile) B (EERTEE) 80,178 81,633
Kingdom of Cambodia RIFEFEH 156,860 91,577
Europe BOM 4,786 2,808
Republic of Korea A 18,007 38,939
Other Asian countries H b ga MBIX 1,484 429
Others HAth - 373
353,948 306,054
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS ERETEEFZEH
Details of the customers individually representing 10% or more Eph A EBEWZI0% KA EZEFEZ
of the Group’s revenue are as follows: BT
2022 2021
—E_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Customer A ZFEA 43,529 44,321
Customer B =FB 129,225 86,433
Customer C BFEC 40,405 N/A 3@ ™
Customer D XFD N/A & A * 33,621

*

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

Except disclosed above, no other customers contributed 10%
or more to the Group’s revenue for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

10. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on:

— bank borrowings —IRITIE

e BRRHE

E_E-_—_F+-_A=+—BHIL=EE

10. FBRAE

THBEZMEFX

2022 2021

— 5 — — —F —
=T —_==

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTT

3,954 3,861

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

1. FIBHEX

2022 2021

—Eg=-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT

PRC Corporate Income Tax PR EFTIST
— current tax —BVHARL 18 4,841 2,596
4,841 2,596
Deferred tax credit (note 30) RER B % (F13E30) (49) (49)
4,792 2,547

U)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

(i)

RERNSHELEABREAESEZ
RANFOER - AR BB AN ERA
RERERRBRIEE ZME
i

RENEHMRS cEREEE
BB 1%28.25% 2 B K sl M H2E
BEAETTHMBIA Wi51216.5% 2
R h R B2 E BB 7T M B
HIR - AR EFEH MRS EREZ
SEERBA LGN SEEIZI6.5%
IR ANTIE o
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1. s

(i) (continued) (i

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for both years as the Group’s income neither arises in,
nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

(i) Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax and (iii)
Implementation Regulation of the Corporate Income Tax
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both

BAEX (#)
(#&)

EERA BIFIEBARH S
R EHEAMBRAMNS L
TEA-Eil - MIEEEHEET
1B B IR B 2 16.5%
HE-

MRZMEFEAREL RN E
BELREFEABRA SARE
BNERELRE-

REPECEAEREREFEM
BERREBRE - B EQRR
% P B 5 B B R 49 £325%

years.
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FRMSHATXRGG B EMER
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss WamRZBHAIEBEERAT

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021

—E=-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Loss before tax R T Bl S 18 (24,641) (125,182)
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable RERAREERDEERE

to the jurisdictions concerned MERFTERNBIE (4,693) (29,677)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERTBA Z G TE

for tax purpose (3,508) (1,086)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A HBAET o RBTE

for tax purpose 8,496 8,247
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised FERMBEEBEZHETE 4,497 25,063
Income tax expense for the year FAMSRAYS 4,792 2,547
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FRAEE

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging: FHNBELEHR T SEEST

2022 2021

—ZEg=-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Wages, salaries and allowances TI&- #& &ER
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (TBEEEHE) 39,474 38,389
Retirement benefit schemes contributions  iE &2 # 5 2 {ft 7%
(excluding directors) (TBREESE) 7,541 7,916
Equity-settled share-based payment N & E RN &
expenses ER 2R 4,419 4,438
Total staff costs 8 TR A 42%8 51,434 50,743
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 318,582 279,154
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BEREHE2ER
plant and equipment 327 835
Depreciation of property, Y- BEREEITE
plant and equipment 4,613 5,409
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEENE 731 936
Amortisation of intangible assets A EME - 197
Research and development expenses HEFREZ (HE)
(note) 13,321 38,298
Operating lease rental relating to FHRHEE KEHENS
short-term lease 10 10
Auditor’s remuneration Z S AN B 532 456
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, included in the MiE: HEZZT-—ZF+=ZA=+—8H
research and development expenses was approximately EFE FARBERZ 2B ITKRA
RMB1,510,000 (2021: RMB1,615,000) related to staff cost. 45 AR ¥1,510,000T (=B = —

F: AR¥1,6150007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. EREE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

RAFEA A S REA RS
BTV IA TR E -

2022 2021

—s-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

Loss E#E
Loss for the purpose of basic and ARGTEERERR

diluted loss per share (loss for the year 5 E 18 518
attributable to owners of the Company)  (AN2Q F# A A E1G
FEEE)

AR®TR ARETTT

(29,433) (127,729)

Number of shares ®RAEAE

Weighted average number of REsTEBRER R
ordinary shares for the purpose of BEEEmn T mR
basic and diluted loss per share InkEFEHE

367,188 298,731

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

As the Company’s outstanding share options where applicable
had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share
calculation, the exercise of the above potential dilutive shares
is not assumed in the calculation of diluted loss per share for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+ - =+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(A)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
EMOLUMENTS

Details of emoluments paid and payable to the directors
of the Company, which include the Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) for the year are as follows:

Salaries and allowances

14 EE THHEABRREEMNS

(A)

EERTHRARHE

FRARARRES (BRETHRAR
(MTBR A ]) ) B R 2 By
EAACE NS

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

YNETIRE 17E

Share base payment

BB AERHA

Total
@3t

2021

600
360
360

FEREN
2022
T--% CZBC-CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of director ARETR ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HIES
Mr. Huang BEE 103 100 460
Yang Guang Bx 8 - 360
Lin Zhenshuang HhEE - - 360
Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth {21 154 149 -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Lee Kit Ying, Winnie ZER 154 149 -
Yang Xuetai BEX 60 60 -
Ts0 Sze Wai it 154 149 -

2022
—E——

— g

RMB'000

ARBTR AR%

2022 2022
—g-C Z F ZFZZ

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARSTT ARBTR  AR%T

= 578 714

7 = = 368 367
4 = = 365 364
= = = 154 149
= = = 154 149
= = = 60 60

= = = 154 149

625 607 1,180

1,320

23

2 = = 1,833 1,962

Mr. Huang is also the CEO of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the CEO.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. Emoluments of the independent non-executive
directors shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or CEO as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors or CEO waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in both years.

No transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which
a director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

BREMA/RRRITHAR  £X
FIRBENME B REEEITHA
BT EIROE

EXATRHTEENNEEER
BERERARARARAKREER
RERBHOME - = XFRBILIE
HITESHHES T ERBEER
ARBEFRERBOME -

AEEYESNHFMHTEEHT
BAE - ERESFMAREERRN
MMAREE & 2 2R - SFRBER
ZHE-ZMEFE HEEEX
17 R AR IR 2 =k [F) 2 I 3% 1 ] A

ARBHARBNE R BB ER]
VEAEEEBEBAARRE
ERNEPERXERAETERE
a1 B R A F R A F AT B A
MER XS RHEREK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE —

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include three (2021: three)
directors. The emoluments payable to the remaining
two (2021: two) individuals during the year which are

employees were as follows:

To—4+-A=+—HILEE

14 EE THRAIAREEMSE (&)

B) EEBEEESHMAZL

rAEEAEELELZRFMAL
BRE=R2(ZB—F:=Z8)%
F-FRAERNEGBMEG (ZT=—
FWMBAIALT(EE)OBME W
T

2022 2021

—E__F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AR T T

Salaries and allowances e MOERh 365 846
Equity-settled share-based payment  JARE# &8 B LAR (D /2 2T

expenses pANEN 53 - _

Retirement benefits scheme R KA FIET B 5K
contributions 9 23
374 869

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
share options were granted to certain non-directors in
respect of their services to the Group under the share
option scheme of the Company. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in note 32.

The aggregated emoluments of each of the remaining
two (2021: two) highest paid individuals fell within the
following bands:

Nil to HKD1,000,000

HE_ZT_—_F#Rk_T-_—%F
T-AZ+—BLEE - BEXRA
AR ERT S AR R E TIEE
EFRAAEBERENRBERFEER
i RS AR - B AR AT BIFF B SN AR
AT IREMIFES2 ©

H#pma (ZT =
@*ﬁ@ﬂ/\immm/ﬁ
[

—F W) &
BT

Number of individuals
A

2022
—E-F

2021
—E-—F

£ %1,000,0007% 7T 2 2

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the five highest paid individuals waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments in both years.
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

DIVIDEND

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year, nor
any dividend has been proposed by the board of directors
subsequent to the end of the reporting period (2021: nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(@ The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employees are required to contribute 5% of their
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and
they can choose to make additional contributions. The
employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5%
of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum
of HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contributions”), and
this is the only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme to make the required contribution.
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the age
of 65, death or total incapacity.

(o) The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits schemes operated
by the government of the PRC is made the specified
contributions under the schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.

The total expense recognised in consolidated profit or loss
of approximately RMB7,569,000 (2021: RMB7,941,000)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

15.

16.

1’2

FREERM S ERR N RARS
EHRBEES I RES IR AT
ZE—F |

R
=
B

iR K18 A 5t &

@ AEBEREFERINELESH
EEpIRaRES B -afEe st
SMmEERAEEEESHIEE
THBYXTIABENESES -
BESRESHE BEEKEAR
#5% =% _EBR & = 1,500 7T {E
I WA BELEIMEK B
FHEAEFTILEE A#H5% 5k £
PR &% /= 1,500/ 7T 5T & ([ 58 i) 14
) Mt AEAEBEREBRES
FEEE A ERRNE—ET-&
BRR65ELRIR B ER2EAT
TERE N B EES 2 508 &
MR

b AEEHNFEMBARNEERZS
Erh B EE M BEREE/R
RAERIEH 8 - B A R AR F &K
RE)EFE B 2 L AR R AE B A El
EHER - AEB R P ERT2E
BRARBAEFE N -EEAR
BB ER R - RN E
ERET AR -

REEERETTEINEASIOAEAR
#7.569,000 (ZE - —F: ARK
7,941,0007T)  AAEERE=Z=-F
—oF+ A=+ —H L FEERFEIR
AN EM L XM ZEFTE M HER e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% BERRHE
Construction in Machinery and Motor
Buildings progress equipment vehicles Total
BT ERIR BERRE RE o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Cost KA
As at 1 January 2021 R-Z-—-%#—-F—-H 122,804 446 33,649 3,562 160,461
Additions during the year rEERE - - 589 375 964
Disposals during the year rEELE - - (8,856) - (8,856)
As at 31 December 2021 and R=F=-%
as at 1 January 2022 +-A=+-BkK
“E--"%#-R-H 122,804 446 25,382 3,937 152,569
Transfer @ 446 (446) - - -
Additions during the year TEERE - - 2,991 19 3010
Disposals during the year rEELE - - (3,408) - (3,408)
Disposal of a subsidlary (note 33) HEMBAR (M333) (36,729) - (2815) (129) (39,673)
As at 31 December 2022 WZF-=%
T-A=1+-8 86,521 - 2,150 3827 112,498
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE
As at 1 January 2021 RZZ=-%5-HF-H 57,406 - 30,688 1,577 89,671
Charge for the year FRZE 4,392 - 679 338 5,409
Eliminated on disposals It B 8 - - (7,993 - (7,993)
Impairment loss recognised for the year ~ FREEAREFE 4,724 = 155 157 5,036
As at 31 December 2021 and WZF=-%
asat 1 January 2022 +-A=+-Bk
“E--"%#-R-H 66,522 - 23529 2,072 92,123
Charge for the year FRZM 3,754 - 476 363 4613
Eliminated on disposals It B 8 - - (3,055) - (3,055)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33) HERBAR (M33) (24,656) - (2,781) (54) (27,491)
As at 31 December 2022 RZZ==Z%
+-A=1+-H 45,620 - 18,169 2,401 66,190
Carrying amounts EHE
As at 31 December 2022 BR=B==f
+=A=t+-8 40,901 - 3,981 1,426 46,308
As at 31 December 2021 RIZZ-F
Wr=1=1—H 56,282 446 1,853 1,865 60,446
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the follow rates per annum:

Over the shorter of term of
the lease or 2.5%

10%-25%

10%-33%

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

As at 31 December 2022, buildings with carrying amounts of
approximately RMB2,068,000 (2021: RMB3,109,000) have
been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the recoverable
amount of the CGU is determined by the management with
reference to a valuation report issued by an independent
qualified valuer — International Valuation Limited (“IVL”). Based
on the result from the valuation report, the recoverable amount
of the CGU is higher than the carrying amount of the corporate
non-current assets of the Group. Therefore, the management
is in opinion that no impairment loss was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

17. % -BERRE &)

taix BERZREBEE (ER2TIE
BRI REABVEAT I FRAEFE:

g FAHAI52.5% -
N EE A%

e B 10% £25%

TE 10% £33%

RZE-_—_F+_A=+—H FKEE
“B ANR#2 068,000 (ZE=—4F:
AR ®3,109,0007T) 2 EEFERKFIER
REBERRITRHE 2 ER-

BE-T__ft+-A=1THLFE"
ReELBUMAREDSEREERES
EBUaERGEEMBEERFEARAR
(TEIFRFHE ) B LM EEREERE R
BREERENER REELEMOA
& BERERERIFRBEENR
HE At EEERR BE-_FT-—
FTA=t+—HLEFEERARRME
BiE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B R ¥R AR B A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

18.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18. FHEEE

Leasehold land

HE L

RMB’000

AR T T

Carrying amount as at 1 January 2021 R-ZEZ—F—A—H®NKREE 27,128

Depreciation charge WERX (936)

Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEERREEE (2,015)
At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022 RZEZ—4F+=A=+—H

MN—F-_—_F—H—H 24,177

Depreciation charge TERXZ (731)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33) HERTE A (FiaE33) (10,323)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2022 RZEZ=F+=-A=+—H

B ERmE{E 13,123

The leasehold land is located in the PRC under the
medium-term lease. The Group is the registered owner of the
leasehold land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leasehold land from their previous owners, and
there are no longer payments to be made under the term of the
land lease, other than payments based on rateable values set
by the relevant government authorities. These payments vary
from time to time and are payable to the relevant government
authorities. The leasehold land components of these owned
properties are presented separately only if the payment can be
allocated reliably.

As at 31 December 2022, leasehold land with carrying amount
of approximately RMB7,906,000 (2021: RMB8,230,000) have
been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the recoverable
amount of the CGU is determined by the management with
reference to a valuation report issued by an independent
qualified valuer — IVL. Based on the result from the valuation
report, the recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than
the carrying amount of the corporate non-current assets
of the Group. Therefore, the management is in opinion that
no impairment loss was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —E - —F+ - A=Z+—HILFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B &E
Customers’
relationship
EEBER
RMB’'000
ARBEFIT
Cost AR AN
As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R-—E-_—5—HF—H-
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 :Z:-ﬁ*# A=+—8"
—E-—F#—HF—BAK
:7::¢+ A=+—8 1,967
Accumulated amortisation Rt
As at 1 January 2021 RZZE=Z—F—A—H 317
Charge for the year FRZH 197
Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEERREEE 1,453
As at 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and RZE-_—F+=-A=+—8"
31 December 2022 T F-A—-HRK
—E-_—_#+-A=+—H 1,967
Carrying amount BREE
As at 31 December 2022 R-—EBE-_—_F#+=-A=+—H -
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE=_—F+=-A=+—H -
Customers’ relationship has finite useful lives and are amortised BEFBEMNERABARER  WLHR10F RN
on a straight-line basis over 10 years. LEGREE -
During the year ended 31 December 2021, impairment loss HE-_ZT-—F+-_A=1+—HILF
recognised in respect of intangible assets of approximately E ETEEERAREEEBHOARE
RMB1,453,000. Details of impairment assessment of intangible 1,453,0007C ° E & E 2 ARG S
assets are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial BN R A B SRR M 5120 -
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

20. GOODWILL 2. HE
RMB’000
AR T T
Cost R
As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZZE=_—4%—H—H"
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 T —&F+=ZA=+—8"
—T__F-A—-HkK
- -F+-A=+—H 5,670
Accumulated impairment Z5HEE
As at 1 January 2021 RZZE=Z—4F—H—H -
Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEDERAEEE 5,670
As at 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and R_E-_—F+_-_A=+—H"
31 December 2022 T -A—-HK
—E-—H+-_HA=+—H 5,670
Carrying amount BREE
As at 31 December 2022 R—ZEBE-_—_F#+=-A=+—H -
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H -
The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated RB|EBAR HB 2 FKEE (MR R
impairment losses) at the end of the reporting period were BEBEB)EIREERAEB CREESE
allocated to CGU of the Group. BfIo
Goodwill is associated with the business combination arose on BER-ZE—NFRA-+=-HHRLZE
23 May 2019. aBHEL-
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

GOODWILL (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the management
of the Group determines that there is an impairment indicator
occurred since the Group made a net loss during the year.
Based on the result of the valuation report from IVL as at
31 December 2021, the recoverable amount of the CGU of
the Group is approximately RMB84,623,000 and the carrying
amount of the corporate non-current assets (including
goodwill and intangible assets) of the Group are approximately
RMB98,797,000. An impairment loss of approximately
RMB14,174,000 is recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021.

The carrying amount of goodwill amounting to approximately
RMB5,670,000 and intangible assets amounting to
approximately RMB1,453,000 are firstly impaired, the
remaining balance of the impairment loss amounting
to approximately RMB5,036,000 and approximately
RMB2,015,000 are allocated the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of the Group respectively based on pro
rata basis of the carrying amount of assets in the CGU.

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and pre-tax
discount rate of 13.6% and cash flow beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 2% growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

20.

B' (&)

BE_Z2-_—F+-_A=+—8I1IF
B AR AEERFTFRNESFEIE &
AEBEEEERAEHBRRENR-
BEFERFHELHOHEREER R
—E-—F+-_A=+—8 A£ER
CELEBEMMATNDSELNABARE
84,623,000 MASKEBETXIERBE
EREREREFEE)NEREAEY
B ARS8 797,000 B E —F — —
F+ A=+ HILEFERERNRER
BHEANRE14,174,0007T °

BEEAHEERIOENHARES,670,000
TR EREEREELHAR,453,000
TLETRE MBEBESREHOARE
5,036,0007T & #) A R #2,015,0007T &
BERSEFEMNEENERERMAERL
BARDEERNEEOYE  BENRE
ARG REEE-

B MR E S EIERNEREER
HMHEE - BEXRANRESRERA
THE R E IR E Pt AR R E5F IR M BR
BB IR K 313.6% WM ERE M8
HAFHZRSRERRTIEMA2% 6
REE R L IR ETIENARA
TTREERTRA W B THBHEBITE
WP REERE - FRAEEFENH
R RRERSRA LA G
BREEENEMNKRBE ZMbFERZ
BUBENREREEEBHMSERN
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. 78

2022 2021

—F — — —F —
=T —_==

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Raw material R 116,340 97,256
Work-in-progress TE & o 3,051 8,151
Finished goods BIPK o 12,878 22,173

132,269 127,580

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 22. A FEGTABZNERMEE
OR LOSS

2022 2021
—_EFE__ —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Financial assets mandatorily measured BEIRAFEFABR
at FVTPL: TENEREE:
Listed securities held for trading: BIEEEMN LT ES
— Equity securities listed in the Stock -REBERM TR
Exchange of Hong Kong (note) IR H (BI5E) 4,245 5,834
Note: Fair value of the listed equity investment has been determined MeE: ETRAREZAFEDZEER
by reference to its quoted market price at the reporting date in REBHREERMBSZMSRESE
an active market. Fair value is classified as Level 1 recurring fair FEoNFEIERE —MEEHEATF
value measurement. EHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables arising from contracts

23. EZEWRE

2022 2021

—E=-C

RMB’000
ARBT

RMB’000
ARBTT

KEEFEHNE SR

with customers KIE 151,924 120,659
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEHBEE (3,353) (2,060)
148,571 118,599

The Group generally allows average credit period of 90 days
to its trade customers. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, net
of allowance of credit losses, presented based on the invoice

AEE-RETEESEFPNTHEER
HI/RO0H - REEY Bl A F RSB A
EROEERULLE

AT TREZBHENNNE HRWKIA
(HIBREEBERE)WRE DT

date:
2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% TR AR T T
0 to 90 days 0£90H 58,598 62,201
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 66,407 42,966
Over 180 days Hi@180H 23,566 13,432
148,571 118,599

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregates gross
carrying amount of approximately RMB92,137,000 (2021:
RMB13,439,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period. Out of the past due balances, approximately
RMB24,314,000 (2021: approximately RMB289,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as default
since the management believes that the debtors have good
historical payment record.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
directors consider any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period.

R-ZZE-—F+-A=+—8 X&£H
BESRNFENHRERERMAZELN A
AR®Q2,137,000t (ZE=——F: AR
#13,439,0007T ) Y FE W 5K I8 - % F UK
RIAR RS R B8 AR - I ERAE SR
P ANR#24,314,0000C (ZZE=—F : 4
A R #289,0007T) E # BI90K 5k A £ -
HRNEEERABES AR BT RGEE
RIT HORWAR BEL -

BEESEKFENAKREZEER B
FEBUKMREZAEEHREHK
B HRIGRENEEEENTAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE —Z —

23.

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trade receivables (net of allowance for credit
losses) that are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant Group entities are as
follows:

usD
JPN

e
Hot

T+ _A=1+—BILEE

EZEWRE &)

NASKEREEBNNEEEAINE
BAHENAKEE 5 RUKHE (B
EEBRERE M

2022 2021
—E-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
126,732 98,693
12,109 6,292

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in note 7.

B 5 BB R RE A BB M T
7 o

24, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24,

RANRERHE MR WA

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARBEFIT
Other receivables H 4t fE W k08 36,451 6,178
Value-added tax receivables JE Uk 12 B AR 5,919 8,132
Prepayment FEFRIE 36,612 39,860
Amount due from ultimate holding company & U & 4215 B A &) 518 28 13
79,010 54,183
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBBEE (6,702) (1,579
72,308 52,604
Less: Non-current portion (note) B IERBIER D (BEE) (6,710) 6,710)
Current portion ENE 65,598 45,894

Note: The amount represents the prepayment to an independent third
party to acquire certain manufacturing machines.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, because of the
pandemic, which the PRC government implemented the
lockdown of the city, the completion of the machines was
delayed.

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables and
amount due from an ultimate holding company are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

LOAN RECEIVABLE

25.

B & K

2022

—E=-C

2021

RMB’000
ARBT

RMB’000
ARBTIT

Fixed-rate loan receivable E B E R 13,262 =
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEEEERE (2,424) =
10,838 -

Analysis as DB
Current Vi) 10,838 =

Note: The amount represented a loan to an independent third party,
which is unsecured, interest-bearing with 8% per annum and
repayable within one year.

The loan receivable was denominated in HKD, the functional
currency of the relevant Group entities.

FIXED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates. The
fixed time deposits are fixed interest bearing ranging from
1.3% to 4.13% (2021: 1.1% to 4.26%) per annum and mature
within 1 year to 3 years (2021: within 1 year to 3 years) from
the placements date. The fixed time deposits with the amounts
of approximately of RMB24,207,000 (2021: RMB58,714,000)
were pledged to secure bills payables (2021: bill payables and
bank borrowings) granted to the Group and will be released
upon settlement of bills payables (2021: bill payables and bank
borrowings).

The Group’s fixed time deposits and bank balances and cash
denominated in RMB which are located in the PRC are subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

Bank balances and fixed time deposits are placed with credit
worthy banks with no history of default.

26.

Mis: ZEWEA-BBYE=TRHENE
R REEFRREE L F N E8%

AERAR-FRNEER-

EBEFABT (FEERBEERZI
REE®)FTE-

EHEFRRBITERRRE

IRITHEBRIZBITHTMEFIEG B - FH
FEHBENF1.3% 2413% (Z T = —
F11%E4.26% ) HETEFH XS -
HRAAENAHEERIELSE

—E - —FAFEIF) -HEHAR
#04,207,000L (Z T = —F: AR¥
58,714,0007T) K TE HR 7 ;X E K LA
REEBERNENZER (ZZE=-—F:
ENEERBRITER  BREBER
ZR(ZE - —F ENZBERETE
) 1B R o

AEBURTE UAREHEZEH
FRAERRITEREASAIPRINEE
BROILARGEE SERNEEERT

PESE -

RITEHRREPRERFRANEERGA
BB NRCERIERTT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

26. FIXED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND 26.

CASH (continued)

The Group’s fixed time deposits and bank balances and cash
that are denominated in currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant Group entities are as follows:

usD
HKD

ETT
BT

EHERRBRITERRRE (&)

REE B LAME A & B B BE A T e S LASK
MEBTEZERFTRRBITEHRRE
o N

2022 2021
—EC-—F —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
506 52

9,825 821

Details of impairment assessment of fixed time deposits
and bank balances are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 217.

EHFERERITERABREF AT B
RERE ISR IMET -

EZEAREREMNRE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR T T

Trade payables Z 5 RN RIA 26,038 3,300
Bills payables FEAS =% 33,417 22,181
59,455 25,481

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as

RBEMRRBEZAM2I2E RN
RIARENEE RO HTAT :

follows:
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 33,357 3,843
91 to 180 days 91£180H 3,199 3,341
181 to 365 days 1812365H 22,899 18,297
59,455 25,481

The credit period granted by the supplier normally ranging from
30 days to 120 days for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —E - —F+ - A=Z+—HILFE

28. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 28. ExtEZER HMENREREHN
LIABILITIES =N

p1172) 2021

—=E_— —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREF T

Contract liabilities EHaE 3,164 1,410

Other payables H b &~ 5OE 563 24,425
Accrued expenses fEstE R 2,563 3,800

6,290 29,635

Contract liabilities represented advance payments received
from customers for sales of umbrella and the related products
pursuant to the respective sales contracts before the control of
the products are passed to the customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the contingent
consideration amounted to approximately RMB21,528,000
is transferred to other payables upon maturity of guarantee
period in relation to acquisition of BIMEZ HHR A A
(“dinting”) in 2019. Detail are set out in the annual report for the
years ended 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021. The amount was fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, accrued expenses and other
payables denominated in HKD amounted to approximately
RMB780,000 and RMB35,000 respectively (2021:
RMB455,000 and RMB23,705,000 respectively).

BMAREREMNIZHEEBRER
ZH RESEHEANRETFEESH
HERRMAAEEMI AR

RBE_T-_—F+_A=+—HL#F
B B-_Z-NFURBEETIREESE

RAR (B IME]EBZKARE
%AE%mﬁ%pmnm%%%Eﬁ%
BESHMENRIE - GRFBERNE
E_T-NAF+ZRA=+—H - ZZ=
EE+_A=+-BR-_B_—F+=
A=E+—BLEFENFR - HERERD
RBE_ZT__F+_RA=1+—HIF
EREHEE -

R-ZZE-_—_F+=—A=+—H UET
FHMEMEREAREMENZIED B
A AR #780,0007T & A K #35,0007T
—ZE - —F: AR¥455000 K AR
#23,705,0007T ) °

29. BANK BORROWINGS R 17 & =K
2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Unsecured, repayable within one year IR AR A WS R
from the end of the reporting period HE—F Wfé}f 20,100 =
Secured, repayable within one year BER ARBEWEER
from the end of the reporting period RB—FRNEE 48,000 77,650
68,100 77,650
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

29. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 29, RITER(£)

As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings are at the fixed
interest rate ranging from 3.40% to 4.55% per annum (2021:
4.35% to 4.80% per annum).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings
of approximately RMB48,000,000 were secured by: (1)
Group’s buildings with the carrying amount of approximately
RMB2,068,000; (2) right-of-use assets with the carrying
amount of approximately RMB7,906,000; (3) personal
guarantee by Mr. Huang, the director of the Company, and his
spouse; (4) the property owned by Mr. Huang’s spouse; and (5)
guaranteed by a company controlled by the son of Mr. Huang.
The remaining balance of bank borrowings of approximately
RMB20,100,000 was unsecured.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings were
secured by the Group’s buildings, right-of-use assets and
fixed deposits with the carrying amounts of approximately
RMB3,109,000, approximately RMB8,230,000 and
RMB40,000,000 respectively.

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

R-ZBE-——H+=-A=+—8 E17E
FIEN F3.40% £4.55% (Z T = —4F:
4.35% £4.80% ) 2 [EE FF|E5 8 °

RZEZZF+=ZHA=+—H &*5E
B3R 17 & 3149 A R #48,000,0007T A T
DS EEEMLER: () AEEKREE
# AR #2,068,0007T IEF ¢ (2) BREEIE
# AR #7,906,000T EREEE: (3)
AABEEHLEREMBABEAER:
GEEENEBIAEETNYE: RO &
SR TR R — A FIR ARV IELR o
RIT1E B EREE 49 A R #20,100,0007T &
AR o

R-B-_—F+_A=+—H Ax&EE
MERITERAREES N BARE
3,109,0007T * A R #8,230,0007T & AR
#40,000,0007T K A £ EEF - (F B
BERTHEREER-

30. EZEHEERE

Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of

subsidiaries

WEB M 2 7

WAFEFARE

RMB’000

ARBTT

As at 1 January 2021 R-_ZE-_—%F—HF—H 413
Credit to consolidated profit or loss (note 11) sFALZE B (K1) (49)

As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—8HK

—FE-F—H—H 364
Credit to consolidated profit or loss (note 11) FALZE B (K1) (49)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZB-—_§+=-A=+—H 315
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30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # = —

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB1,115,000 (2021: RMB32,112,000)
available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax
assets has been recognised in respect of tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams and unrecognised tax
losses will be expired within five years as at 31 December
2022.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
Company’s subsidiary in the PRC from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
difference attributable to the retained profits earned by the
subsidiary in the PRC of approximately RMB108,213,000
(2021: approximately RMB117,808,000) as the Group is

able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

30.

e BRRHE

E-—Ft-A=t—ALEE

EEHEARRE ()

R-EBE-_—F+_A=+—H A%H
AR AHEEEO AR 115,000
T (ZZEZ—F: AR#32,112,0007T)
AR ARKERKFNB- R
F+_A=+—H BRERERFIERT
AIEA BRERBEBEBENAFTNA

B HR - B R 3 A 2R 5 1R SRR RE AR R

BEPECEMSHE B_TTNF
—A—BR RARANFRHNNERF]
BT BUH 7 & R /9 B B A MmN TE Y -
A ZNER (B 1] 22 I T s = BB O SR [BI B 9
BEREZBIAARERA RS REE -
MERGEMBREEPENBRRR
BY B4R 283 F) 49 A R #108,213,0007T
(ZE2=——F : H AR ¥117,808,0007T)
SIBME R =T IREER BRE -

SHARE CAPITAL 31. AR
Number of shares Amount
IR #E cor ]
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= —E-— —E_C T &
T=A +=A +=A +=A
=+-8 =t-8B =t-8 =t-A
'000 000 HK$'000  HK$'000
i TR FHT TH
Ordinary shares of HREE0.032%E T
HK$0.032 each AR
Authorised: SERE
At the beginning and at the end AR HI91 R #AK
of the reporting period 1,562,500 1,562,500 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERETRHAR:
At the beginning of KR E B4
the reporting period 302,880 227,160 9,692 7,269
Placing of new shares Fid & %7 ik
(note (a)(i) and (a)(ii) (BT £ @) B (a)i)) ) 60,570 75,720 1,938 2,423
Exercise of share options TR 49,100 = 1,571 =
412,550 302,880 13,201 9,692
Nominal values of ordinary LmEE
shares in RMB (AAR¥EEE) 10,818 7,833
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

31.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(a)(i)

On 4 November 2020, the Group also entered into another
general mandate placing agreement pursuant to which the
Group has conditionally agreed to place through the placing
agent, up to 75,720,000 general mandate placing shares, to
not less than six placees who and whose beneficial owners
are independent third parties at a price of HK$0.20 per general
mandate placing share. The placing of new shares was
completed on 21 January 2021.

On 16 May 2022, the Group entered into the general
mandate placing agreement pursuant to which the Group has
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent, up to
60,570,000 general mandate placing shares, to not less than
six places who and whose beneficial owners are independent
third parties at a price of HK$0.38 per general mandate placing
share. The placing was completed on 1 June 2022.

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends

as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at the meeting of the Company. All ordinary share rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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31.

B (&)
(ks
@) R-F-FF+—AmA KEE]

(a)(i)

AN S — MR E R B
Zl»‘%.ﬁﬁ{'%ﬁﬁn‘%ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
& & %75,720,000/% — A% % # B2 & IR
T’ﬁ?’?z F/\%E@E)\(%@E]\&ﬁ

LERHEBANORBLE=H) 8
Hx*ﬂﬁt‘i‘%@ﬂ%HX@ET%Z%O.ZO?%T_E°
FREEER - E-_—F—A-_+—
HZER e

RZZBE-Z—FRA+B XEEI
RV —REREEHE B A
SEEERHRAEFBREERERE
&% %60,5670,000/% — A% 1% 1 B & I% 17
FARDRANBEIREA (KEARKES
LERMBAARBIYE=R) 8K
— MR R E MR 1p (B 48 /20.3878 7T © B
EEHER T _FA—HZEK-

TAREBEATEZEETHERNKRER
ARARAIARE LZE—R—FENEE
EoFTELTBRIMAD 77J§$§F7—ﬁ
A& o



32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 January 2015 for the purpose of
rewarding certain eligible persons for their past contributions
and attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance
with the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
force for a period of ten years commencing on the listing date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
any proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executive
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
directors or proposed director (including non-executive
director and independent non-executive directors) of any of its
subsidiaries; any direct or indirect shareholder of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and any advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting. Subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval
of the shareholders in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time, the board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of the approval by the shareholders in
general meeting; and/or

(i)  grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

32. UEREECERERS

KRR ZE—RAF—AZ+=HBEHK
BT S ([BRERTE]) BT EE
ETEEBALBENER R KB
BUHAEENKRR BEIRNIBEES
M/ SHEBERER GRS H A EB
KB -EEHIKNEFNHEER AL
LAE A 5 AT B S BRI R - B
IR BB AR AR T B IR BIAS EL IR BT AR LE SN -
Bl EE e AR+ F ER
HIEHE W

BRETINEERSEAREART
S EAT A E QR E 2 28k
RBEE THRABSSHABE  HE
AMBARNEMNESREAES (R
BINTESRBIIFERTES) K
N A S E AR BB A R A B &
BRR AR R SE AR EREH
ERFEAA BERE HER TP EK
B

BT AR A AR A 81 R A BT 2
f T 8055 it 0P PR 20 823847 10
SERAUE & {TEBBRERB
SRR BB BT H10% - 7
AR A BB R RN A R
R/ ETRARHRENE BT
KART EFE -

(i) BEREE A ERE S EREAR
RAKeHEEZERAEETRGEH
10% : &,/ 8

i) RMEEFEETNEERZEAR
HHBE10% FRER A0 BB AR 4 -

BE LXAMRE REBBRETSER
AREEE R E BB B DK EH
ARITIEH P A BB AR 1T (1 # T 31T
MBRNBEARRETREBAEARAFT
iR B BT A (D F930% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZEZ - - —F+ - A =+—HIFE

32.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 32.

(continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within
any 12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of options in
excess of 1% limit shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular
by the Company; and (ii) the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed under
the listing rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, which period may commence
from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends on a
date which is not later than ten years from the date of grant of
the share options subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share
Option Scheme are required to pay the Company HK1.0 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 21 days after the offer
date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares on the date of the offer for the grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (jiij the nominal value of a
share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 32. URRLEE v EBRERS (&)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the number of shares in respect of RZBZZF+ZA=+—08 REE
which may be issued upon exercise of share options granted R EIE R D M AITERNBREET
and remain outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was 18 A T AT AR D BB &37,768,000
37,768,000 (2021: 56,610,000), representing 9.2% (2021: M (ZF = —% :56,610,0008% ) ' 16 &
18.7%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. AARRARIEBEITHRMA2% (= —

F:187%) °

The following tables discloses details of the Company’s share TRBERE S RER PR B ERE
option held by the employees and consultants and movements ZHBERER:

in such holdings:

Number of share options

BRE%A
Outstanding
asat
Exercise  Qutstandings 31.12.2021
Exercisable price asat  Granted during and Qutstanding
Gategory of participants Date of grant period per share 11202 01 01.01.202 (ranted Exercised Lapsed asat 31122022
R=%=-§
T2
=t+-Ak
- St
-B-RH
SREEH RERS il BRITEE i EXi1d
HKS
iy
Employees of the Group 10042019 1004.2019- 10.04.2029 0900 18,750,000 - 18750,000 - - - 18750,000
KEEES ZE-NERATH ZE-NERATAEZECNERATR
14,06.2020 14.06.2020 - 13.05.2022 0464 7,572,000 - 7572000 - (7,560,000) (12,000 -
CECTERATMA CECEERATRAECSCCERATCA
08.04.2021 08.04.2021- 07.04.2023 0.74 - 18930000 18,930,000 - - - 18930,000
“Z--ERANA “3--EMBN\RE-ECZEMALA
12.06.2022 12.05.2022 - 11.06.2024 0462 = = - 30,288,000 (30,200000) = 86,000

“ECCERATCA ZE-CERATCRECI-MERAT-H

2632000 18930000 45262000 30,288,000  (37,760,000) (12,000 37,768,000

Directors of the Group 14.05.2020 14,05.2020 - 13.05.2022 0464 11,358,000 - 11,368,000 - (11,340,000 (18,000) -
1EEES 3-3ERATMA C3-SFRATMAZEC3-CERATER

37600000 18930000 96,610,000 30,288,000  (49,100,000) (30,000) 37,768,000

Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 0.681 0.74 0.701 0.462 0.463 0.464 0819
METEARE (AT

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 49,100,000 share HE-_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE"

options were exercised and 30,000 share options were lapsed. 49,100,00017 & i # % 17 % £ 30,00017
BARER -

No share option was exercised, expired, lapsed or cancelled  E— R —FFA=T—HIEFE"

during the year ended 31 December 2021. P BE AR A TT IR - B AR - Rk o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 32. LIERLEHEBRERSE (£)

(continueq)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 30,288,000 share
options were granted on 12 May 2022. The estimated fair
value of the option granted was approximately RMB4,419,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 18,930,000 share
options were granted on 8 April 2021. The estimated fair value
of the option granted was approximately RMB4,438,000.

This fair value was calculated using the binomial option pricing
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

BE-T-_—_H+-A=t—HLFE"
30,288,000 IERER T - _F A A
T oHEH -FIEEBRENGGT AT
B4 B ARE4,419,0007T °

BE-_T_—+-RA=+—HIFE"

18,930,000 IR ENR — T = —F 1 A
NBEEL R ERENGTAFE
435 AR #4,438,0007T °

ZATETER AR BT EER
5 o FIEE 8 A BT

8 April 2021 12 May 2022

—E_—F —E——

—_—

MANH EA+=H

Exercise price (HK$) THEE(Bx)
Expected volatility (%) 8 HA R 18 (%)
Contractual life (years) EHFR (F)
Risk-free rate (%) EEBFZE (%)
Expected dividend yield (%) FEHREER (%)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 2.08
(2021: 2.08) years. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The binomial option pricing model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The Group recognised the total expenses of approximately
RMB4,419,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately RMB4,438,000) in relation to the share options
granted by the Company.
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0.74 0.462
91.535 95.301
2 2
0.138 2.242

EHRETRAA R RREBAE2.08( =
T —F:208)FZELKEMETE °
BATRABERFHIERERE &
EbE AT EEE TERS R
REBAZNTETARHE -

= S R AL T DM 5 PR 4R
2 A8 5 5 WA 2 T (B8 AR
BRBRERE L BEET BB
B2 BETESTEBRBER2 TRER
st -

BE_E-__F+-_A=+—HILFE"
AEBERARFAREERERERH
S EEEL) N R¥4,419,0000 (= F = —
F 4 AR¥4,438,0007T ) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

33. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 17 June 2022, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company - Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong Company
Limited and an independent third party entered into the sales
and purchases agreement, to sell, 100% equity interest in
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary — Jinjiang Jicheng Light
Industry Co., Ltd., which were engaged in manufacturing
and sales of umbrella parts in PRC, at cash consideration of
RMB30,000,000.

The disposal of a subsidiary was completed on 24 June 2022.

The net assets of Jinjiang Jicheng Light Industry Co., Ltd. at
the date of disposal were as follows:

33.

HEME 2R

RZFEZZFRA+ER -AREZHE
E2ENBRASENREEREERA
AE—E2BIYF=HILEE RS N
HEBEEEMBARESIERETA
RAR(RPRERERERHERRT
) 2100% - HeREBEAARYE
30,000,0007tT °

HEWNBRAIER -_ZE-_F,XA
—+HBE TR

BIERETIERATNEERRZE
EFENAT:

RMB’000
ARBTT

Consideration: RAE:

Cash received WEIMIR &

30,000

Analysis of assets and liabilities over
which control was lost:

24/6/2022
—E-—F
ANAZ+HEA

RMB’000
ARBTT

REENEZEERABIT:

Property, plant and equipment Y B K& 12,182
Right-of use assets FREEE 10,323
Inventories FE 3,430
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b fE W 5K TE 33,314
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEeEEY 157
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E b FIE (34,462)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 24,944
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

33. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 33. HEWEBLQRE (&)
RMB’000
ARBFT
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMRBA Rz W
Consideration received and receivable B EERARE 30,000
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (24,944)
Gain on disposal & W= 5,056
RMB’000
AR T T
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEXZRERAFE:
Cash consideration RERE 30,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERSRECEFEY (157)
29,843
The consideration of RMB30,000,000 was fully settled during R E AR #30,000,000cEREE-Z
the year ended 31 December 2022. T+ A=+ HUIFERELES-
34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 4. BHAIEE
Save as disclosed in elsewhere to the consolidated financial BREREMBMEEME D FIEEEI
statements, the Group also has the following material related REBNMBEUTERNBH AR H -
party transactions.
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL FTEEEASHE
Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and BRanfr & M ik M a1 4R i Mt AR A
employees of the Group as set out in note 14 to the REBEITEERBABCASEHESRLE
consolidated financial statements, who are considered as the BYXfeMEiN REBENBRAETEE
key management personnel of the Group, the Group did not BABZ A EREAERFEE-
have any other significant compensations to key management
personnel.
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EFEERTENTABZMNESHTFMNEE
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to FEREARBREMSBREET-

the performance of individuals and market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 35. BIEZEBHELNAEBYHER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TEREVNAEBEREZDEENEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BEE RS RIFRES2EH-
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EREEDEEMNBENEREMNEX
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified KRB RE UHBEASIELEAN
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash SEFEREMNERBTEME TN
flows from financing activities. WEME o

Contingent
Interest Bank consideration
payables horrowings payables Total

B
B RIE BITER HANE ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTT AREBTRT ARETR

As at 1 January 2021 R-ZZE-_—%—F—H - 77,150 13,991 91,141
Financing cash flows MERERE (3,861) 500 - (3,361)
Non-cash changes: FRSEH:
Fair value change N EEH - = 7,537 7,537
Interest expense recognised EHRMEX

(note 10) (H3E10) 3,861 - - 3,861
Transfer to other payables REI B RS

upon maturity Ho{th i 1 FRIE - = (21,528) (21,528)

As at 31 December 2021 and RZE-——F

as at 1 January 2022 +-A=+—8k
—E-—#—F—H - 77,650 - 77,650
Financing cash flows BERSME (3,954) (9,550) - (13,504)
Non-cash changes: FHEEH:
Interest expense recognised BEERMEZ
(note 10) (FF3E10) 3,954 - - 3,954
As at 31 December 2022 R-BZZF
+=ZA=+—-8 - 68,100 - 68,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT 36. XA T BRI L FES B
OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY e

(A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (A) 727 R BB R

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Non-current asset kRBEE

Investment in subsidiaries HEM B AR 262,927 262,927

Current assets REBEE

Prepayment AT A 193 219

Amounts due from subsidiaries & U BT B A B FRIE 51,053 16,945

Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 163 131
51,409 17,295

Current liabilities REBEE

Accruals expenses and other payables Bt & 3 & H b B~ 28 773 24,153

Amounts due to subsidiaries FE 1 BT BB & R) 3R 7E 35,710 11,360
36,483 35,513

Net current assets/(liabilities) FREBEE(BE) 14,926 (18,218)

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 277,853 244,709

Net assets EEFE 277,853 244,709

Capital and reserves BEAREHE

Share capital % 2 10,818 7,833

Reserves ] 267,035 236,876

Total equity ERAE 277,853 244,709

Signed on behalf of the board of directors by: REESEESE:
Huang Weniji Yang Guang
BEXE BX
Director Director
- EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT 36. XA T BRI L HES B
OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (continued) ®R(E)

(B) MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (B) AATIEENWEE

Translation ~ Share option Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve reserve  Merger reserve losses Total

BA  ROEE  EREE RBREEE  AHERE  RHER it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
S A

ARETR  ARETRT ARETR ARETT  ARMTL ARETR

As at 1 January 2021 W=-%--%-A-AH 5,802 125,516 40,782 8,416 229,897 (165,984) 244,429
Loss for the year FNEE - - - - - (16,540) (16,540)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BREHHFRREL

financial statements ERZE - - (66) = = = (66)
Total comprehensive expense FREERTEE

for the year - - (66) - - (16,540) (16,606)
Issue of new shares EiLil 2,031 10,417 - - - - 12,448
Grant of share options B - - - 4,438 = = 4,438
As at 31 December 2021 and RZZ=Z—-F

1 January 2022 +ZA=1t-Hk

—E--F-f-H 7833 135,933 40,716 12,854 229,897 (182,524) 244,709

Loss for the year FNEE - - - - - (9518) (9,518)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ REHHFRRELZ

financial statements ERER - - (1n) - - - (1n)
Total comprehensive expense FREERXEE

for the year - - (17) - - (9,518) (9,689)
ssue of new shares BITHR 1,649 17,444 - - - - 19,093
Grant of share options RiBRE - - = 4419 = = 4419
Exercise of share options fImRE 1,33 2,017 - (6,032) - - 19321
Lapse of share options BREAR - = o @) o 3 -
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZf

+=A=t+-AH 10,818 177,394 40,545 11,238 229,897 (192,039 277,853
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+ A =+—RHIFE

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. MBLABIZFH1E
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, particulars of the RZEBEZZFR-_ZE=-_—F+=A
subsidiaries of the Company are listed as follows: =+t—H XRFMMBARFBEET:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Jicheng Umbrella
Holding Limited

Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited

Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong
Company Limited

ERREEAERAA

HK Baohui Industry Limited

ERBEREXERAA

Zenith Century Limited

Zenith Century Limited

Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd.*
(note)

BEENEXERAE (i)

Jinjiang Jicheng Light Industry
Co., Ltd.* (notes (i) and (i)

ETEKETERAR
(BREQ) B i)

* For identification purposes only
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Country/place of
incorporation/ date of
incorporation

ERAYES 88/

A

BVI

RRRAHS
Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
0

BVI
ERRAHS
PRC

e

PRC

HE

Class of Proportion of ownership interest and
shares held voting power held by the Company
FRARFRAEEREER
Fis R B8R RARELA
2022
—E-C
%
BAL
Ordinary 100 100
HER
Ordinary 100 100
HER
Ordinary 100 100
HER
Ordinary 100 100
HER
Paid up capital 100 100
HRER
Paid up capital - 100
HRER

Y EHBS

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
EERTRAR
BA/ERER

USD1

eI
HK$1

BT
HK$20,000
20,0007 T

usD100

100%7T
HK$180,000,000

180,000,000/ 7T

RMB20,595,500

AR 820,595,5007T

Principal activities

TEEH

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REER

Dormant

gmes

Dormant

gmes

Manufacturing and
sales of umbrellas
and umbrella
parts

HERFERS
G

Manufacturing and
sales of umbrellas
and umbrella
parts

HERFERS
RRRRH



37.

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —“F+-_f=+—HIFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Country/place of
incorporation/ date of
incorporation

Class of
Name of subsidiary shares held

W28 A iR 5

Wing Ka Investment BV Ordinary
Holdings Limited

Wing Ka Investment EERRES AR
Holdings Limited

Wing Wing (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary
Industrial Limited

KREBEEERAT BE gl

Jingting (note (i) PRC Paid up capital

BIRE (M3() hE HRER

Except for Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited, Zenith Century
Limited and Wing Ka Investment Holdings Limited, all other
subsidiaries are indirectly held for the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/establishment.

Notes:

(i) The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

(i) The entity was disposed during the year ended 31 December
2022.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March
2023.

37.

Proportion of ownership interest and
voting power held by the Company
ERRERERERR
FRELH

2022
—m——

———

%

100

100

100

38.

MELRZFHE (&)

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BERTRAR
BA/ZERER

Principal activities

FEXRY

100 USD10,000  Investment holding

10000%€  REZR
100 HK$1,000,000  Investment holding

1,000,000 7¢
100 RMB1,000,000

REER

Sale of umbrellas
and rain gears

HERRRREA
ik

AE%1,000,0007

REKREZTEBEARRDGF  Zenith
Century Limited }2Wing Ka Investment
Holdings Limited %I+ F7 8 E A [} & 2 7)
HEREAARIMERE -

P R Bk F A I R BEAE BB A A
BRAHKREENEHZES

PR AEMBARIEZAEER B MM
BXIL, PRI B E o

B 5 -

) ZEBANPEKZININEBECE-

iy ZEBREEZE-_ZTE-_-_F+=A
=t+—BLEEEHE-

HERSMBERER

GAMBRREN_ZT_=%=A
=t REEEeHERREET
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEME

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilites A F&H 7| AEEBR BE R EHRFEEHE T
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the ZZEEUNBENBEHBE  HEkaE T
published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out FEHEBIXLGEE P HRE -

below.

RESULTS E

For the year ended 31 December
HEZ+-A=1+—-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

—E-—F —E-FTF —T-—NEF ZZT-—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue Wiz 353,948 306,054 344,390 558,599 521,186
Gross profit E7 35,366 26,900 52,795 65,861 79,393
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (B51B)
ikl (24,641) (125,182) (31,823) (11,441) 25,260
(Loss)/profit for the year RAFEE AEMSL
attributable to owners of FE (BB /
the Company ikl (29,433) (127,729) (34,312 (16,247) 18,700

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—~H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

—E_C —E-—F ZE-F “E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR

Non-current assets FEMBEE 71,14 101,333 105,238 134,665 132,899
Current assets MENEE 397,299 349,099 476,371 582,873 568,527
Current liabilities mENBE 136,313 133,862 154,971 250,407 240,222
Non-current liabilities FERBERE 315 364 413 15,031 =
Net assets EEFE 331,812 316,206 426,225 452,100 461,204
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